
Table of Contents

 
Agenda 2
Presentation from Preston Prince on the 75th Anniversary of the
Fresno Housing Authority

Presentation/Proclamation 5
Minutes

July 15, 2015/July 17, 2015 19
Payroll Report

Payroll Report 23
Warrants

Accounts Payable 26
Water Conservation Leak Notification Report

Report - Leak Notification 43
Monthly Investment Report Ending June 30, 2015

Investment Report 47
Third Year Funding of State Law Enforcement Grant

Staff Report - BSCC 50
Resolution Approving First Amendment to Employment
Agreement with Police Chief  Blohm

Staff Report - Police Chief Agreement 62
Resolution Authorizing the Purchase of a Prefabricated
Restroom for Katey's Kids Park

Staff Report - Katy's Kis Park 68
Resolution Awarding Contract for the California Avenue
Reconstruction Project

Staff Report - California Bid 80
Agreement with Crown Homes for the Deferment of Certain
Fees Concerning Construction of 20 Homes in Kerman Estates
Tract 5478

Staff Report - Crown Homes 87

1



AGENDA 
KERMAN CITY COUNCIL  

REGULAR MEETING 
Kerman City Hall 

850 S. Madera Avenue 
Wednesday, August 05, 2015 

6:30 PM 
 
 
 

AGENDA PACKET AVAILABLE FOR  
REVIEW 72 HOURS PRIOR TO  

THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING AT  
THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE AND  

ON THE CITY WEBSITE 
ITEMS RECEIVED AT THE 

MEETING WILL BE AVAILABLE  
FOR REVIEW AT THE CITY  

CLERK’S OFFICE  

Stephen B. Hill – Mayor 
Gary Yep – Mayor Pro Tem 
Rhonda Armstrong – Council Member 
Nathan Fox – Council Member 
Bill Nijjer – Council Member 

ALL MEETING ATTENDEES ARE ADVISED THAT ALL PAGERS, CELLULAR TELEPHONES AND ANY OTHER 
COMMUNICATION DEVICES SHOULD BE POWERED OFF UPON ENTERING THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 

AS THESE DEVICES INTERFERE WITH OUR AUDIO EQUIPMENT. 
 

OPENING CEREMONIES 
 

• Welcome – Mayor  
• Call to Order 
• Roll Call 
• Invocation 

At this time the Council wishes to provide anyone an opportunity to give a brief invocation or 
inspirational thought. In accordance with law, we would request this opportunity not be used to 
recruit converts, to advance anyone, or to disparage any other faith or belief. If no one steps 
forward, we will observe a moment of silence so that we may all focus our thoughts on how best 
to serve our community. 

 

• Pledge of Allegiance – City Clerk  
 

AGENDA APPROVAL/ADDITIONS/DELETIONS 
 

To accommodate members of the public or convenience in the order of presentation, items on 
the agenda may not be presented or acted upon in the order listed. 

 

1. PRESENTATIONS/CEREMONIAL MATTERS 
 

A. Presentation from Preston Prince on the 75th Anniversary of the Fresno Housing 
Authority (MR) 

 
ATTACHMENTS: Presentation/Proclamation  

 
REQUEST TO ADDRESS COUNCIL 

 
This portion of the meeting is reserved for members of the public to address the Council on items 
of interest that are not on the Agenda and are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the 
Council. Speakers shall be limited to three minutes. It is requested that no comments be made 
during this period on items on the Agenda. Members of the public wishing to address the Council 
on items on the Agenda should notify the Mayor when that Agenda item is called, and the 
Mayor will recognize your discussion at that time. It should be noted that the Council is 
prohibited by law from taking any action on matters discussed that are not on the Agenda. 
Speakers are asked to please use the microphone, and provide their name and address. 

 
 

2



2. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

Matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be enacted by one 
motion and one vote. There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, 
a member of the audience or a Council Member may request an item be removed from the 
Consent Calendar and it will be considered separately. 

 

A. SUBJECT: Minutes 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve minutes as presented. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: July 15, 2015/July 17, 2015   
 

B. SUBJECT: Payroll 
 

Payroll Report: July 5, 2015 - July 18, 2015: $144,642.26; Retro Pay: $18.17; Overtime: 
$7,514.68; Standby: $1,088.86; Comp Time Earned: 18.75      
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve payroll as presented. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Payroll/Overtime Report 
 

C. SUBJECT: Warrants  
 

1. Nos. 6787-6909: $512,269.48 
2. Excepting - Valley Food 6865-$54.22 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council approve warrants and electronic bank transfers as 
presented. (Pursuant to Government Code 37208) 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Accounts Payable 
 

D. SUBJECT: Water Conservation Leak Notification Report (KM) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Informational only. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Report - Leak Notification   
 

E. SUBJECT: Monthly Investment Report Ending June 30, 2015 (TJ) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council accept the Monthly Investment Report as presented 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Investment Report   
 

F. SUBJECT: Third year Funding of State Law Enforcement Grant 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  Council approve Addendum No. 2 to Joint Law Enforcement 
Memorandum of Understating (MOU) between the County of Fresno, all fifteen cities in 
the County, and the California Board of State and Community Corrections (BSCC) and 
authorize the Chief of Police to sign on behalf of the City. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report – BSCC 
 

3



G. SUBJECT: Resolution Approving First Amendment to Employment Agreement with 
Police Chief  Blohm (HCM) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council consider and by motion adopt resolution approving First 
Amendment to Employment Agreement between City and Joseph Kenneth Blohm. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Police Chief Agreement   
 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS  
 

None 
 

4. DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
 

A. SUBJECT: Resolution Authorizing the Purchase of a Prefabricated Restroom for Katey's 
Kids Park (PG) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt a resolution authorizing the City 
Manager to a sign contract for the purchase of the "Ozark II" model precast concrete 
double restroom from CXT, Inc. in the amount not to exceed $ 83,297.95. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report – Katey’s Kids Park 
 

B. SUBJECT: Resolution Awarding Contract for the California Avenue Reconstruction 
Project (JJ) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution awarding the contract for the 
California Avenue Reconstruction Project to Don Berry Construction, Inc. in the amount 
of $678,679.24 and authorize the City Manager to sign the agreement. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - California Bid   
 

C. SUBJECT: Agreement with Crown Homes for the Deferment of Certain Fees Concerning 
Construction of 20 Homes in Kerman Estates Tract 5478 (OP) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution approving the agreement with 
Crown Homes to defer certain fees concerning construction of 20 homes in Kerman 
Estates Tract 5478 and authorize the Mayor to execute the agreement. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Crown Homes   
 

5. CITY MANAGER/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 

6. MAYOR/COUNCIL REPORTS 
 

7. CLOSED SESSION 
 

None 
 

8. ADJOURNMENT 
 

In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), if you need special assistance to 
participate at this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (559) 846-9380. Notification of 48 hours 
prior to the meeting will enable the City Clerk to make reasonable arrangement to ensure accessibility 
to this meeting. Pursuant to the ADA, the meeting room is accessible to the physically handicapped. 
 

4



 

www.fresnohousing.org 1331 Fulton Mall, Fresno, California 93721 (559) 443-8400 TTY (800) 735-2929 

Fresno Housing Authority 
Press Packet 2015 

5



 

 

Fresno Housing Authority is a public agency that helps more than 16,000 low-, very low-, and moderate-income families throughout the city 
and county of Fresno afford housing and the opportunity to live in diverse, vibrant neighborhoods. Fresno Housing Authority is the 5th largest 
housing authority in California and one of the 60 largest in the United States. Housing authorities play a crucial role in driving community 
revitalization by creating and renovating affordable housing, attracting private investment, and developing innovative programs that support 
self sufficiency. Fresno Housing Authority is led by a Board of Commissioners appointed by the Mayor of Fresno and the Fresno County 
Board of Supervisors. 

The Work  
The Fresno Housing Authority helps more than 16,000 low, very low, and moderate income families, 
including seniors and the disabled, afford safe and quality housing. The agency administers diverse 
affordable housing and homeless programs funded by the U.S. Office of Housing and Urban 
Development (HUD), the U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA), and the State of California. These 
programs help defray housing costs for residents of the city and county of Fresno with incomes 
substantially below the regional median income levels. 

 

The Programs 
Fresno Housing Authority, employing about 240 staff members, administers programs and services 
for residents in the city and county of Fresno. The agency owns, manages and subsidizes 
approximately 4,000 units of quality rental housing dispersed throughout the city and county, and 
provides rental assistance to an additional 12,500 qualified households through the Housing Choice 
Voucher program (previously known as Section 8). Fresno Housing Authority works with nonprofit 
and for-profit developers to expand the supply of affordable housing and also purchases and 
manages numerous affordable, multi-family housing developments throughout the city and county. 
Additionally, Fresno Housing Authority supports its residents to become employable through 
programs such as Family Self Sufficiency (FSS) and Resident Opportunities for Self-Sufficiency 
Program (ROSS). 
 

The Strategies  
 With a mission to create and sustain vibrant communities throughout Fresno County, the Housing 
Authority focuses on four overarching strategies:  

– developing and maintaining quality affordable housing for low-income residents throughout the 
city and county;  

– designing, implementing, and sustaining exceptional programs that invest in residents and 
program participants to become self-sufficient;  

– leading, encouraging, and building partnerships with local, regional, and national organizations 
to promote policies that build community; that increase and enhance affordable housing options; 
and that provide programs that reflect and support the needs of participants; and  

– generating public will to address the housing needs of low-income households by contributing to 
effective statewide and national advocacy efforts and by leading local and regional programs that 
educate and encourage residents of Fresno County to have a voice in housing and civic issues.  

6



 
 

About the Fresno Housing Authority 

Q What is the Fresno Housing Authority?  

A The Fresno Housing Authority helps more than 16,000 low and moderate income families, 
including seniors and the disabled, afford safe and quality housing.  Fresno Housing is a 
cooperation between two public agencies, The Housing Authority of Fresno County and the 
Housing Authority of the City of Fresno.  Each operate individual programs but share 
administrative functions to capture efficiencies. 

Q  What does the Housing Authority do?  

A  It administers many affordable housing and homeless programs funded by the U.S. Office 
of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), the U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA), 
and the State of California. The agency’s mission is to build strong communities by 
providing quality housing and empowerment opportunities to eligible families in 
partnership with community resource providers. 

Q How does the Housing Authority help Fresno residents afford quality housing? 

A The Housing Authority manages a variety of programs that help offset the housing costs of 
Fresno residents with incomes substantially below the local median income. The Housing 
Authority also works with nonprofit and for-profit developers to expand the supply of 
affordable housing and also purchases and manages numerous affordable multi-family 
housing developments throughout the city and county. Additionally, the Housing Authority 
supports residents as they work to improve their employability through programs such as 
Family Self Sufficiency (FSS), among others. 

Q Who is in charge of the Housing Authorities of the City and County of Fresno? 

A The Fresno Housing Authority is led by two Boards of Commissioners – the Board of 
Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the City of Fresno and the Board of 
Commissioners of the Housing Authority of Fresno County – each with seven members. The 
Executive Director of the Housing Authority reports to both boards and oversees the day-to-
day operations of both agencies. Approximately 240 employees are involved in carrying out 
the Housing Authority’s mandates and programs. 

  

7



 
 

Q Where does the Housing Authority get its funds?  

A The majority of funds come from the U.S. Office of Housing and Urban Development 
(HUD). HUD regulates and provides funding for most of the programs administered by the 
Housing Authority, including public housing, Housing Choice Vouchers (commonly known 
as Section 8), and Shelter Plus Care.  The Housing Authority also generates income from its 
properties and can apply for a variety of grants as well as federal, state, and local funds to 
supplement its core funding. The Boards of Commissioners approves budget plans and 
oversees fiscal plans and expenditures. 

Q What is the average household income for families receiving assistance from the Fresno Housing 
Authority? 

A Sixty-two percent (62%) of households receiving assistance (vouchers or apartments) fall in 
the very low income category – earning less than 30% of the local median income in Fresno 
County. (Median income in Fresno County is approximately $48,700; persons earning less 
than 30% of median income earn less than $11,670 per year). 

Q How are self-sufficiency and independence of residents promoted and supported? 

A The Housing Authority partners with numerous organizations to provide programs, (such 
as youth workshops and after-school activities; parenting classes; and self-esteem, stress 
management, job development, financial management, budgeting/credit, early home-buyer, 
predatory lending, and foreclosure prevention workshops) that assist families to improve 
their economic and educational status. Contact the Housing Authority for more information 
about Family Self-Sufficiency, Financial Education, Tutoring programs. 

Q Where are the housing complexes that are owned and operated by the Housing Authority?  

A Apartments that are owned and managed by the Housing Authority are located in both the 
city and county of Fresno. For a complete list of all locations, please see the Housing 
Authority website (www.fresnohousing.org). 

Q How does the Housing Authority help low and moderate income families pay their rent? 

A The Housing Authority provides Housing Choice Vouchers which pay part of a family’s rent 
and ensure that low and moderate income families don’t pay an excessive percent of their 
income for housing. The Housing Authority also has programs specifically designed to 
address the needs of farm workers, the homeless, and residents with physical and/or mental 
challenges. 

8



 
 

Q How much of a renter’s housing costs does the Housing Authority cover? 

A The amount of subsidy a family receives from the Housing Authority depends largely on the 
size and income of the family. In the Housing Choice Voucher program (Section 8), participants 
pay approximately 30 - 40% of their adjusted gross income in rent, and the balance of the 
rent amount is paid by the Housing Authority. 

Q How does someone apply for Housing Choice Vouchers or for an apartment in a Housing 
Authority-owned building? 

A There is currently a waiting list for Housing Authority-owned apartments and for the 
Housing Choice Vouchers program. For information about applying for the wait list for 
Housing Authority-owned apartments, call 559-445-8956; for information about the Housing 
Choice Voucher program, call 559-266-9941 or view the website (www.fresnohousing.org). 

Q Do some people get priority over other families waiting for apartments? 

A The Housing Authority gives preference to families and individuals such as the elderly, the 
disabled, veterans, and local residents, as well as those with special situations. 

Q Do people have to live in a public housing apartment to receive help from the Housing 
Authority? 

A No. While the Housing Authority owns and manages public housing complexes throughout 
Fresno County, the majority of residents helped by the Housing Authority are assisted 
through the Housing Choice Voucher program and live in housing that is privately owned. 

Q Do residents of Housing Authority owned apartments and Housing Choice Voucher holders 
have to be U.S. citizens? 

A No. Non-citizens can live in Housing Authority-owned apartments and can also live with family 
members who have Housing Choice Vouchers. At least one member of the household must be a 
U.S. citizen. (Rental assistance amounts reflect the number of U.S. citizens in the household). 

Q Does the Housing Authority provide special support for farm workers? 

A Yes. The Housing Authority owns farm labor housing complexes in Orange Cove, Mendota, 
Parlier, and Fresno. Legal residents who derive at least half of their income from farm-
related sources are eligible for housing assistance in these complexes. This program is 
supported by grants from the Rural Development division of the U.S. Department of 
Agriculture. 

9



 
 

Q Does the Housing Authority provide support for migrant farm workers? 

A Yes. The Housing Authority manages two migrant farm worker complexes – one in 
Firebaugh and one in Parlier. These complexes are occupied from April through October and 
can be rented by farm workers who are legal residents who have a permanent home at least 
50 miles away from the complex. These complexes are supported by grants from the State of 
California’s Office of Migrant Services. 

10



 
 

 

Fresno Housing Authority Programs 

Housing Choice Voucher Program 
The Housing Choice Voucher Program (commonly known as Section 8) is a federal rental assistance 

program for low-income families renting from private landlords. 

 

Family Self-Sufficiency Program (FSS) 
FSS assists Housing Authority families to access community resources to achieve economic 

independence, educational benefits, and self-sufficiency. Participants enter into agreements with the 

Housing Authority to define five-year economic goals and establish escrow accounts to be used to 

achieve those goals. 

 

Resident Opportunities for Self-Sufficiency Program (ROSS) 
The ROSS Program assists families living in public housing to achieve economic independence and 

self-sufficiency through higher education, job training, and first-time home buying support. 

 

Housing Counseling  
The Housing Counseling Agency, assists families to achieve or preserve home ownership and rental 

housing. Individual and group counseling includes pre- and post-purchase, homeownership 

mortgage delinquency, credit, financial, rental and other housing counseling services. 

 

Shelter Plus Care 
Shelter Plus Care helps disabled homeless persons with severe mental illness, AIDS, or chronic 

substance abuse problems find permanent, supportive housing. 

 

Karl Falk Scholarship 
The Karl Falk Scholarship provides financial assistance to help Housing Choice Voucher recipients 

and Housing Authority residents pay for college tuition. The scholarships are presented in honor of 

Karl Falk, a professor at California State University Fresno, who specialized in housing and urban 

revitalization and served as Chair of the Housing Authority of Fresno County. 
 

Better Opportunities Builder, Inc. (BOB) 
BOB is an independent, non-profit organization that assists local governments and the Housing 

Authority provide housing for low and moderate-income residents. BOB partners with the Housing 

Authority by administering funds related to the Low-Income Housing Tax Credit Program and the 

Housing Opportunities for Persons with HIV/AIDS Program. BOB shares office space with the 

Housing Authority. 

 

For more information: www.fresnohousing.org 

11



 

 

Fresno Housing Authority is a public agency that helps more than 16,000 low-, very low-, and moderate-income families throughout the city 
and county of Fresno afford housing and the opportunity to live in diverse, vibrant neighborhoods. Fresno Housing Authority is the 5th largest 
housing authority in California and one of the 60 largest in the United States. Housing authorities play a crucial role in driving community 
revitalization by creating and renovating affordable housing, attracting private investment, and developing innovative programs that support 
self sufficiency. Fresno Housing Authority is led by a Board of Commissioners appointed by the Mayor of Fresno and the Fresno County 
Board of Supervisors. 

Board of Commissioners 
 
City of Fresno 
 
Craig Scharton, Chair 
Adrian Jones, Vice Chair 
Steven Bedrosian 
Timothy Lowe 
Rev. Reuben A. Scott 
Karl Johnson 
Jorge Aguilar 
 
 
County of Fresno 
 
Stacy Sablan, Chair 
Reneeta Anthony, Vice Chair 
Jim Petty 
Nancy Nelson 
Lee Ann Eager 
Venilde Miller 
 
 

Executive Management Team 
 
Preston Prince, CEO/Executive Director 
Tracewell Hanrahan, Deputy Director 
Jim Barker, Chief Financial Officer 

12



Comfort in Numbers

HAVING GROWN UP in Thai refugee camps, Chue 

Mouanourtoua took advantage of an opportunity 

to come to the U.S. in his teens, arriving in Fresno 

in 1993, where he attended Clovis High School and 

Fresno City College before enlisting in the Navy in 

1999 (serving four years stationed in San Diego. 

Chue returned to Fresno about 12 years ago, 

earned a B.S. in mathematics at Cal State Fresno and 

then simultaneously began his M.S. and teaching 

credentials programs (also at Cal State). His wife Lee, 

came to the U.S. from Thailand in 1996. She stayed at 

home to care for the couple’s six children and later 

attended beauty school.

The Mouanourtoua family’s first introduction to 

the Housing Authority came when Chue’s CalWORKs 

job counselor referred them to the agency in 2005. 

They entered the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher 

program, which helps qualified, low-income families 

select and afford quality private housing, and have 

been receiving assistance from the Fresno Housing 

Authority since 2008. 

Chue describes the Housing Authority’s Family 

Self-Sufficiency (FSS) program as a “major benefit” 

to his family. He has enjoyed and taken advantage of 

diverse workshops offered by FSS on home ownership 

and credit history, where he has learned about the ins 

and outs of purchasing a home through the ‘first-time 

buyer program.’ Though the time is not yet right for 

the Mouanourtouas to become homeowners, Chue’s 

ultimate goal is to buy a home in California.

While Chue is often motivated to move beyond 

Fresno – a possibility given the shortage of math 

teachers throughout California, Chue and his family 

are satisfied and well situated in their current 

residence, which they found on the Housing Authority 

website. “I like it because it’s quiet,” Chue says, “It’s a 

nice neighborhood. It’s close to the kids’ school.” 

As a Housing Authority resident who faces 

the challenges of raising a family, finding a job, and 

eventually buying a house, Chue says “The Fresno 

Housing Authority helps a lot. For me, it helps me 

focus on what I want and what I want to achieve. The 

assistance helps me have peace of mind. It helps me 

focus on things I want to do, and that’s a big benefit.”

13



Bringing Them All Back Home

ORIGINALLY FROM REEDLEY, California, Louis 

Angel moved to Fresno with his family in the early 

90’s at the age of nine. As he grew older, he became 

aware of his parents’ increasing drug abuse, and any 

sense of a stable home environment began to collapse. 

During high school, he moved frequently and often 

lived with relatives and friends, never staying in any 

one place for very long. For a while, Louis fell into the 

drug trap and lost custody of his three daughters.

Motivated to piece his life back together and 

bring his children home, Louis turned to Child 

Protective Services (CPS) for help. Through his social 

worker, he learned about Section 8 Housing Choice 

Vouchers and the Fresno Housing Authority, which in 

2007 began to provide assistance to secure his living 

situation. In addition to receiving financial assistance 

for his apartment, Louis became part of the Housing 

Authority’s Family Self Sufficiency (FSS) program 

which afforded Louis numerous opportunities to 

grow and learn about how to save money, how to 

establish a successful credit record, how to become 

more financially independent. 

A year later, when approached by the Housing 

Authority about the possibility of becoming a 

homeowner, Louis set in motion a plan to reach that 

goal. He acquired his GED and completed training to 

become an Emergency Medical Technician. Though 

this career path changed course, the Housing Authority 

offered to pay for Louis’ education to become a drug 

and alcohol abuse counselor. His experiences with FSS 

helped him see home ownership as a realistic goal. 

As a result of his hard work, Louis was named the 

2010 Fresno Housing Authority Participant of the Year 

– an award that reflects his efforts and his successes. 

Louis’ days are busy – he continues his studies 

at Fresno City College; takes his daughters – Jasmine, 

Casira, and Hannah – to school; works his day job; 

and interns ten hours per week at a drug and alcohol 

facility. He’s training with CPS to become certified 

to work with social workers, and hopes for a full-

time position after he completes his program. Soon, 

Louis will be the first person in his family to graduate 

college, and the first to own a home. 

“I’m just really thankful that I’ve had the 

opportunity to better myself and my life, not only 

for me but for my kids. I’m just excited that home 

ownership is right around the corner. I’m really 

excited,” explained Louis.

14



A Place of Their Own

OFELIA RAMOS TRAVELED to the U.S. from 

Guanajuato, Mexico, for the first time when she was 18, 

accompanying her brother and father to harvest grapes 

in California’s Central Valley. She returned many times 

for many other harvest seasons, until an opportunity 

arose that allowed her to secure legal status. Soon after, 

Ofelia met her husband Luis, and they started a family..

Life in the U.S. was not easy, and finding stable, 

clean, safe, affordable housing was probably the 

biggest challenge. “Many of the places we saw were 

poorly maintained and you couldn’t get landlords 

to make repairs,” explained Ofelia. While living in a 

small apartment in Calwa, CA (a small community 

about four miles from downtown Fresno), neighbors 

informed the Ramoses of a program in Fresno called 

the Housing Authority that provided apartments for 

low-income families. In 1993-4, the family moved into 

their first Housing Authority apartment, where they 

remained for eight years. As their family grew, the 

Housing Authority took note, offering them a newly-

renovated, four-bedroom unit in 2000, which they 

took. Throughout those 17 years, the Ramoses say they 

had consistent support from the bilingual Housing 

Authority staff. 

But the Ramoses were keenly interested in 

purchasing a home of their own, so they applied to 

numerous agencies without success, until they learned 

from a Fresno Housing Authority brochure, about the 

Housing Authority’s first time homebuyer program. 

With the help of Housing Authority staff, the process 

was explained and the paperwork got filed. Ofelia and 

Luis attended orientation sessions. “They taught us 

about credit history, interest, even a little about family 

cooperation. It was a little like therapy for us and the 

whole family got more united.”

In March of 2010, the Ramos family moved into 

a brand new home in the Sierra Point development 

(a project of the Fresno Housing Authority). “This 

is a dream come true,” Ofelia says, “after work, now 

I’m happy… I go and rest at my own house.” She and 

Luis work at a recycling center; Daniel and Jessica, 

the two oldest children are in college; Miriam and 

Sonya are in local public schools. Ofelia describes 

their new neighborhood as a close-knit, hard-working 

community. “We lived comfortably in our previous 

Fresno Housing Authority apartments, but it’s 

definitely better to be a homeowner,” Luis adds. “Es 

un sueño hecho realidad, y no lo cambiaria por nada.” 

(“It’s a dream come true, and I wouldn’t trade this for 

anything.”)

15



A Chance to Recover

WITHOUT THE SUPPORT provided by the Fresno 

Housing Authority, there’s a good chance that Kevin 

Fekety, an Army veteran in his 50s would be living on 

the streets. He’s been there before; the Fresno resident, 

who has struggled with a childhood traumatic brain 

injury has been on and off the streets for years as he 

struggled to maintain employment and pursue an 

education. But Kevin’s life turned around when he was 

offered an opportunity for stable housing through the 

federal Veteran Affairs Supportive Housing (VASH) 

program, administered locally through the Fresno 

Housing Authority. VASH is a Section 8 program that 

provides housing opportunities to eligible veterans. 

Kevin praised the opportunities it brings to veterans 

and stresses that success takes time and a series of 

small steps.

In addition to housing, Kevin receives clinical 

services and case management at the local V.A. 

hospital. This combination of secure housing and 

supportive services has provided the stability Kevin 

needed to focus on education and employment.

“It doesn’t happen overnight… it takes months 

to stabilize… then you can move into a transition,” he 

explains. The VASH program provides a supportive 

environment, unlike other programs that, as Kevin 

says “factory” veterans, sending them hurriedly 

through the system with a minimum of support and 

resources. Kevin describes VASH as “a miracle;” it 

helped build and normalize his life in less than a 

year. He attributes his own healing to the veteran 

community – to the lives that touched his and to those 

he hopes he touched as well. 

Connecting with housing and services through 

the Fresno Housing Authority in 2009 has helped 

Kevin achieve the stability to begin to overcome some 

of his challenges. He’s bonded with other veterans 

living in his apartment complex, and he’s preparing 

to complete his degree at Fresno State. He says the 

housing and services provided through the Housing 

Authority have helped him and other veterans break 

the cycle of homelessness.

“We’re resilient. I think anybody – given the 

chance – is resilient. Given the chance, I think 

anybody can dig out, but you need that opportunity,” 

Kevin clarifies.

16



Keeping on the Path

RAQUEL WILLIAMS, a single mother of four, 

moved from Tranquility, CA, to Fresno straight out 

of high school. She attending Fresno City College 

and Valley College, but dropped out as she waited 

to deliver her third child.  

Raquel had previously participated in the Fresno 

Housing Authority’s Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher  

Program, which helps low-income families afford 

quality housing in the private market. After her  

divorce, she heard about a newly-developed Fresno 

Housing Authority complex – Parc Grove Commons, 

and submitted an application. She heard there were 

many, many and was not optimistic: “I just thought, 

‘It’s in God’s hands – all I can do is put in the 

application and see what happens.’”

Less than two months later, Parc Grove became 

Raquel’s first home as a single parent. The three- 

bedroom apartment provides a stable base from 

which her children–Carl Jr., Jennika, Kharron, and 

Ianarri–can pursue their own dreams… of college 

and good careers. “We love the apartment,” she 

says, “It means a lot to us. The kids like it; they’re 

close to school.” 

Raquel visits the library nearby, and reads 

books with her youngest, Ianarri; she drops the 

other children off at the Community Computer Lab, 

where they work on school projects. Carl Jr. attends 

Design Science High School where he’s turned 

his grades around and is now eagerly researching 

colleges. Jennika is soon to follow. Raquel works 

hard to keep them focused. 

Her recipe for moving forward? “Stay healthy, 

stay strong, and keep your family close.” To other 

families facing hard times, Raquel advises: “Know 

what you want for your kids as well as yourself, and 

stay on that path.”

17



PROCLAMATION 
 
 

WHEREAS, the year 2015 is recognized as the 75th anniversary of the Fresno Housing 

Authority; and  

WHEREAS, for 75 years, Fresno Housing  has changed the lives of tens of thousands of 

families throughout Fresno County by providing housing and critical programs that 

encourages people to succeed and engage in their neighborhoods; and 

WHEREAS, Fresno Housing is more than just housing, but believes housing is core. 

Fresno Housing creates vibrant communities and quality housing, and works to engage 

residents to excel in school and work; and 

WHEREAS, Fresno Housing focuses on the quality of place by creating new, innovative 

housing developments; and 

WHEREAS, Fresno Housing leads, encourages, and builds partnerships with local, 

regional, and national organizations to promote policies that build community; and 

WHEREAS, Fresno Housing, for 75 years, has recognized its responsibility to be 

professional, effective, and unparalleled in its commitment to leverage opportunities to 

support the communities of Fresno County. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Kerman City Council recognizes and 

congratulates Fresno Housing Authority for their 75 years of contributions to the local 

community. 

I, Stephen B. Hill, do hereby affix my signature and direct the City Clerk to affix the official 

seal of the City of Kerman on behalf of the City Council on this 5th day of August 2015. 

 
        ________________________ 
          Stephen B. Hill 
                 Mayor 

18



MINUTES 
KERMAN CITY COUNCIL  

REGULAR MEETING 
Kerman City Hall 

850 S. Madera Avenue 
Wednesday, July 15, 2015 

6:30 PM 
 
 

Stephen B. Hill – Mayor 
Gary Yep – Mayor Pro Tem 
Rhonda Armstrong – Council Member 
Nathan Fox – Council Member 
Bill Nijjer – Council Member 

Present: Mayor Hill (SH), Rhonda Armstrong (RA), Gary Yep (GY), Fox (NF), Nijjer (BN) 
Absent: None 
Also Present: City Attorney Cantú, Chief of Police, Community Services Director, 
Finance Director, Public Works Director, City Engineer 

Voting: Yes, No, 
Absent (Abstain 
if needed) 

• Welcome – Mayor   

• Call to Order 6:36 p.m. 

• Roll Call All present 

• Invocation NF 

• Pledge of Allegiance – City Clerk  Performed 

AGENDA APPROVAL/ADDITIONS/DELETIONS Approved  

1. PRESENTATIONS/CEREMONIAL MATTERS None 

REQUEST TO ADDRESS COUNCIL  

2. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

A. SUBJECT: Minutes 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve minutes as presented. 
 

B. SUBJECT: Payroll 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve payroll as presented. 
 

C. SUBJECT: Warrants  
 

1. Nos. 6693-6786: $237,295.08 
2. Excepting – VF 6731-$16.76, 6782-$51.08; Sebastian: 6781-$417.29 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve warrants and electronic bank transfers 
as presented. (Pursuant to Government Code 37208) 
 

D. SUBJECT: Resolution Proclaiming July 2015 as “Parks Make Life Better!® 
Month” in the City of Kerman (PG) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution proclaiming July 
2015 as "Parks Make Life Better!® Month" in the City of Kerman. 
 

Approved 
GY/BN 
removing Item 
4K, excepting 
6731, 3781, 
3782 (5-0-0) 
 

 

 

 

Approved 
6731/6782 
NF/RA  
(4-0-1) GY  

Approved 6781 
NF/GY (4-0-1) 
RA 
 

 

Res 15-35 

 

19



 
E. SUBJECT: Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to Sign the Agreement for the 

Collection of Special Assessments (JJ) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt the resolution authorizing the 
Mayor to sign the Agreement for the Collection of Special Assessments with 
the County of Fresno. 
 

F. SUBJECT: Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to Sign Administering Agency-
State Master Agreement No. 00478S for State-Funded Projects (JJ) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt the resolution authorizing the 
Mayor to sign Administering Agency-State Master Agreement No. 00478S for 
State-Funded Projects. 

 

 
 
 
 
Res 15-36 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Res 15-37 

G. SUBJECT: Investment of Funds in the State of California Local Agency 
Investment Fund (TJ) 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution authorizing 
investment of funds into the local agency investment fund. 

Res 15-38 

H. SUBJECT: Resolution Amending 2015/2016 Miscellaneous and Public Safety 
Salary Schedules (TJ) 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution amending the salary 
schedules for fiscal year 2015/2016 

Res 15-39 

I. SUBJECT: Local Transportation Funds and State Transportation Assistance 
Funds from the Fresno Council of Governments (TJ) 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Informational only and direction to staff. Informational 
Only 

J. SUBJECT: Certification and Claim of Measure "C" Extension Local 
Transportation Revenues for Fiscal Year 2015/2016 (TJ) 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution authorizing Finance 
Director to submit certification and claim form for Measure "C" Extension 
Local Transportation Revenues for Fiscal Year 2015/2016 to the Fresno 
County Transportation Authority. 

Res 15-40 

K. SUBJECT: Resolution Designating an Additional Councilmember to Sign 
Warrants or Checks (TJ) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution authorizing 
Councilwoman Armstrong as an additional check signer for City bank accounts 
until the appointment of a full time City Manager. 

Removed from 
Consent 
Calendar 
Approved 
GY/BN (5-0-0) 
 
 
Res 15-41 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

None 

20



4. DEPARTMENT REPORTS  

A. SUBJECT: Letter from Malka Nijjer on the Status of the Kerman Animal Shelter  Presented 

RECOMMENDATION: Informational only and staff direction.  

B. SUBJECT: New Animal Shelter Update (PG) Presented 

RECOMMENDATION: Council review and give input, suggestions and 
direction to staff. 

 

C. SUBJECT: Application for Community Development Block Grant Funds for 
Fiscal Year 2016-2017 (JJ) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council select a preferred project and direct Staff to 
submit an application for Community Development Block Grant Funds for 
Fiscal Year 2016-2017. 

Minute Order 
Approved 
GY/BN (5-0-0) 
1. Defer 16/17 
payment.  
2. If Deferment 
not available do 
projects: 
scoreboard, 
bathrooms and 
handicap 
entrance at City 
Hall.  

D. SUBJECT: Police Fleet Analysis (TJ) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Informational only and direction to staff. 

 
Approved 
GY/BN (5-0-0) 
to purchase 
budgeted 
amount of 
$125,000. 

5. CITY MANAGER/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 

6. MAYOR/COUNCIL REPORTS  

7. CLOSED SESSION 8:20 p.m. 

A. Government Code Section 54957.6 Conference with Labor Negotiator - City 
Negotiator - City Negotiator: Mayor; Unrepresented Employee: Police Chief 

No reportable 
action. 

B. Government Code Section 54957 Public Employment Appointment - Title: 
Interim City Manager 

No reportable 
action. 

COUNCIL RECONVENE FROM CLOSED SESSION & REPORT ANY ACTION TAKEN 8:20 p.m. 

8. ADJOURNMENT 8:21 p.m. 

 

MINUTES CERTIFICATION 

I,   MARCI REYES, City Clerk for the City of Kerman, do hereby declare under penalty of perjury that the 
above Minutes are a true depiction of all actions taken at the City Council meeting held on the first date 
above written at Kerman City Hall, 850 S. Madera Ave, Kerman, CA. 

         Date: July 16, 2015 
 
         ____________________ 
         Marci Reyes 
         City Clerk 

21



 

 
MINUTES 

KERMAN CITY COUNCIL  
SPECIAL MEETING  
Kerman City Hall 

850 S. Madera Avenue 
Friday, July 17, 2015 

8:00 AM 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

1. Call to Order 
 
 
8:06 a.m. 

2. Closed Session Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957 Public 
Employment Appointment – Title: Interim City Manager 

8:07 a.m. 
 
8:13 p.m. 
reconvene  

3. Consider and approve agreement for employment of Interim City 
Manager 

  

Approved 
GY/RA 
employment 
with John 
Kunkle effective 
July 20, 2015 
(5-0-0) 

Adjournment 8:20 a.m. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES CERTIFICATION 

 
I,   MARCI REYES, City Clerk for the City of Kerman, do hereby declare under penalty of perjury that the 
above Minutes are a true depiction of all actions taken at the City Council meeting held on the first date 
above written at Kerman City Hall, 850 S. Madera Ave, Kerman, CA. 

         Date: July 20, 2015 
 
         ____________________ 
         Marci Reyes 
         City Clerk 
 

Stephen B. Hill – Mayor 
Gary Yep – Mayor Pro Tem 
Rhonda Armstrong – Council Member 
Nathan Fox – Council Member 
Bill Nijjer – Council Member 

22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



LEAK NOTIFICATION

July 29, 2015 Meter Readings

House # Street Name Meter Serial #

Present 

Read Notice #

699 S 16TH ST 9252929 1992 1

705 S 16TH ST 9253198 1287 1

775 S 16TH ST 9253096 1032 1

689 S 17TH CT 9252835 2450 1

372 S ALMOND AVE 9252446 2224 1

412 S ALMOND AVE 9252471 1289 1

846 S ALMOND AVE 9369534 1322 1

262 S BORDEAUX AVE 9253300 1483 1

16010 W BOTELHO AVE 9369274 1983 1

16036 W BRIAN AVE 9252600 1804 1

517 BURGUNDY ST 9252999 1940 1

529 BURGUNDY ST 9253027 1426 1

15612 W C ST 10427792 1094 1

15877 W C ST 9369484 894 1

15650 W CALIFORNIA AVE 9252704 1707 1

210 S CHABLIS AVE 9253256 1467 1

260 S CHABLIS AVE 9253297 2004 1

303 S CHABLIS AVE 9253354 1426 1

14341 W CHAD CT 9253205 1276 1

15730 W DYLAN AVE 9369366 879 1

15729 W E ST 9369375 1204 1

15877 W E ST 9419859 1483 1

15897 W EL MAR AVE 9369505 1958 1

16167 W EL MAR AVE 9252635 2219 1

14110 W F ST 9252803 2343 1

14328 W F ST 9252994 827 1

14655 W F ST 11315214 1850 1

14655 W F ST 10247877 3993 1

14084 W G ST 9252811 1831 1

14498 W G ST 9252924 1634 1

445 S GOLDENROD AVE 11013859 2195 1

545 S GOLDENROD AVE 9253143 2373 1

565 S GOLDENROD AVE 9253140 2617 1

529 GURDWARA AVE 9253053 1104 1

14099 W KEARNEY BLVD 9419949 2874 1

14918 W KEARNEY BLVD 10427720 893 1

15797 W KEARNEY BLVD 9419886 884 1

15811 W KEARNEY BLVD 9419887 1238 1

15861 W KEARNEY BLVD 9419885 1465 1

861 S MCKENNA AVE 9252818 2151 1

892 S MCKENNA AVE 9252840 1624 1

332 S MERLOT AVE 9253070 1708 1

341 S MERLOT AVE 9419607 707 1

281 S MICHELLE AVE 9252760 1040 1

15620 W MIDDLETON AV 9252545 1178 1

Page 1 of 4
43



LEAK NOTIFICATION

July 29, 2015 Meter Readings

House # Street Name Meter Serial #

Present 

Read Notice #

15891 W MIDDLETON AV 9252424 1465 1

15837 W MONTEREY LN 9253275 1152 1

16168 W NATALIE AVE 9369287 1126 1

16192 W NATALIE AVE 9369292 1103 1

14529 PALM CT 9369142 1091 1

281 S PARK AVE 9369533 1453 1

14580 W SAN JOAQUIN AVE 9252848 1166 1

14601 W SAN JOAQUIN AVE 9369411 1542 1

16015 W SAN JOAQUIN AVE 9252547 1861 1

14295 W SHERI ST 9253093 2362 1

14319 W SHERI ST 9252913 773 1

891 S SHERI WAY 9149581 3572 1

298 S SISKIYOU AVE 9369498 2444 1

591 S SISKIYOU AVE 9369179 298 1

14551 W STANISLAUS AVE 9253228 2116 1

14475 W SUNSET AVE 9252801 1401 1

14560 W SUNSET AVE 9252375 1122 1

14615 W SUNSET AVE 9253328 1319 1

552 S SUSAN AVE 9253322 1805 1

839 S SUSAN AVE 9149663 1068 1

16135 W TROY AVE 9369325 1245 1

750 WALNUT AVE 9369477 1277 1

547 WALNUT CT 9419995 880 1

14049 W WHITESBRIDGE RD 14177615 553 1

421 S 3RD ST 10428496 181 2

751 S ALMOND AVE 9369545 1195 2

14329 W B ST 9419870 950 2

14367 W B ST 9149578 1651 2

15642 W B ST 9149633 2319 2

410 BURGUNDY ST 9253154 1471 2

14352 W CHAD CT 9253104 1330 2

14594 W CHARDONAY AVE 9253245 1593 2

15617 W E ST 9369379 1852 2

14083 W F ST 9252882 1148 2

14083 W G ST 9252784 1060 2

264 S JOSEPH AVE 9252737 2356 2

14615 W KEARNEY BLVD 9419874 1220 2

582 S KENNETH AVE 9252483 1627 2

763 S KENNETH AVE 9252568 1871 2

751 S KOLEEN AVE 9369551 2089 2

1221 S MADERA AVE 10391329 1212 2

1705 S MADERA AVE 12294831 52 2

323 S MERLOT AVE 10427791 543 2

561 S MICHELLE AVE 9252414 1322 2

15905 W MONTEREY LN 9252384 933 2

Page 2 of 4
44



LEAK NOTIFICATION

July 29, 2015 Meter Readings

House # Street Name Meter Serial #

Present 

Read Notice #

15932 ORCHARD WAY 9252412 1799 2

16169 W SAN JOAQUIN AVE 9252646 1953 2

885 S SHERI WAY 9419967 1497 2

342 S SISKIYOU AVE 9252663 2413 2

14562 W STANISLAUS AVE 9419876 2901 2

14604 W SUNSET AVE 9253346 2599 2

658 S 17TH CT 9369388 740 3

14580 W CHARDONAY AVE 9253243 1220 3

14576 W EL MAR AVE 9253068 1386 3

15880 W GATEWAY BLVD 12295027 2557 3

585 S GOLDENROD AVE 9253163 1871 3

798 S JOSEPH AVE 9252712 813 3

373 S LUM AVE 9252452 1921 3

265 S MERLOT AVE 9253099 1669 3

15797 ORCHARD WAY 9419934 1388 3

14580 W SUNSET AVE 9253345 1112 3

14311 W TAYLOR ST 9252859 2923 3

16184 W TROY AVE 9252519 1167 3

150 S 1ST ST 70192486 7070 4

601 S 1ST ST 10247846 9489 4

990 S 4TH ST 10428492 74 4

467 S 6TH ST 10427718 1081 4

669 S 18TH ST 9253120 1408 4

16075 W ALLYSON AVE 9369234 491 4

121 S ALMOND AVE 9369172 1718 4

453 S ALMOND AVE 9252364 631 4

569 S ALMOND CT 9419968 1460 4

578 S ALMOND CT 9369144 2304 4

15912 W BOTELHO AVE 9419894 1016 4

410 BOYD AVE 9252615 1261 4

16002 W BRIAN AVE 9149655 1711 4

520 BURGUNDY ST 9252996 2316 4

14285 W C ST 9369404 1063 4

14475 W CHARDONAY AVE 9253333 1343 4

14058 W E ST 9253145 1880 4

15766 W E ST 9419857 2088 4

15777 W E ST 9419864 1314 4

15906 W E ST 9419863 1961 4

15934 W E ST 9419862 1742 4

14461 W EL MAR AVE 9253331 2305 4

14546 W EL MAR AVE 9253247 1151 4

14558 W EL MAR AVE 9253218 2369 4

14307 W F ST 9252832 1883 4

14339 W F ST 9369406 938 4

14040 W G ST 9252838 1115 4

Page 3 of 4
45



LEAK NOTIFICATION

July 29, 2015 Meter Readings

House # Street Name Meter Serial #

Present 

Read Notice #

14266 W G ST 9252979 2401 4

14415 W KEARNEY BLVD 9419907 3137 4

15652 W KEARNEY BLVD 9252770 2840 4

16029 W KEARNEY BLVD 9369231 752 4

561 KOLEEN CT 9419844 1656 4

431 S LUM AVE 9252453 2566 4

377 S MERLOT AVE 9253314 1395 4

15441 W MIDDLETON AV 9419983 2235 4

15726 W MIDDLETON AV 9252398 1687 4

15838 W MIDDLETON AV 9252778 2980 4

16160 W NATALIE AVE 9369286 1794 4

15768 ORCHARD WAY 9419925 816 4

15889 W SAN JOAQUIN AVE 9369333 1481 4

16141 W SAN JOAQUIN AVE 9252560 858 4

14355 W SHERI CT 9253077 1377 4

14160 W SHERI ST 9252897 1628 4

791 S SHERI WAY 9253207 2320 4

14380 W STANISLAUS AVE 9252847 1269 4

14529 W STANISLAUS AVE 9253337 1672 4

15941 W STANISLAUS AVE 9252678 1562 4

15406 W SUNSET AVE 9419976 1087 4

15448 W SUNSET AVE 9419878 1570 4

15645 W SUNSET AVE 9252494 1210 4

15703 W SUNSET AVE 9252595 1953 4

15887 W SUNSET AVE 9253329 1395 4

562 S SUSAN AVE 9253316 1979 4

568 WALNUT CT 9416956 1135 4

14061 W WHITESBRIDGE RD 13019908 1861 4

First Notice 69

Second Notice 27

Final Notice 12

Return Receipt 55

Page 4 of 4
46



CITY OF KERMAN
CD/Securities Portfolio
As of June 30, 2015 6/30/2014 6/30/2015 FY to Date

Interest Rate/ Opening Maturity Book Additions/ Book Interest 
Institution Account Number Trans. Date Date Date Balance (Deletions) Cashed In Balance Fair Value Paid
CD's:
Pacific Mercantile Bank 80900343 0.95% 1/22/08 1/22/14 99,000.00                99,000.00         99,000.00                852.76             

American Express Centurion Bank 615-030525-245 1.20% 8/11/11 8/11/14 52,000.00                (52,000.00)       -                    -                          309.44             

CIT Bank 615-030525-245 1.15% 8/10/11 8/11/14 46,000.00                (46,000.00)       -                    -                          263.78             

World Financial Network NB 615-030525-245 1.25% 8/31/11 8/29/14 200,000.00              (200,000.00)     -                    -                          -                   

Ally Bank  615-030525-245 1.75% 10/8/10 10/8/14 100,000.00              (100,000.00)     -                    -                          877.40             

CIT Bank, Salt Lake City, UT 615-030525-245 1.50% 5/4/11 11/4/14 99,000.00                (99,000.00)       -                    -                          748.60             

GE Money Bank 615-030525-245 1.70% 11/5/10 11/5/14 97,000.00                (97,000.00)       -                    -                          831.28             

GE Money Bank 615-030525-245 1.70% 1/21/11 1/21/15 100,000.00              (100,000.00)     -                    -                          1,700.00          

State Bank of India 615-030525-245 2.00% 3/24/11 3/24/15 98,000.00                (98,000.00)       -                    -                          1,960.00          

Doral Bank 615-030525-245 0.70% 6/12/13 6/13/16 149,000.00              (149,000.00)     -                    -                          724.73             

Doral Bank San Juan PR 615-030525-245 1.20% 6/28/12 6/28/16 99,000.00                (99,000.00)       -                    -                          818.52             

Ally Bank, Midvale 615-030525-245 1.80% 6/8/11 6/8/15 147,000.00              (147,000.00)     -                    -                          2,646.00          

EverBank 615-030525-245 0.70% 12/14/12 6/15/15 98,000.00                (98,000.00)       -                    -                          687.88             

1st Merchants 615-030525-245 1.00% 3/21/14 9/21/17 96,000.00                96,000.00         96,446.40                476.05             

Ally Bank 615-030525-245 0.95% 10/2/14 10/11/16 100,000.00      100,000.00       100,360.00              523.22             

American Express Centurion Bank 615-030525-245 1.70% 7/26/12 7/26/17 98,000.00                98,000.00         99,304.38                3,041.21          

American Express Centurion Bank 615-030525-245 1.15% 5/16/13 5/16/18 98,000.00                98,000.00         97,694.24                558.87             

American Express Salt Lake City Ut 615-030525-245 1.25% 8/14/14 8/14/18 98,000.00        98,000.00         98,030.38                790.44             

Amex Centurion Salt Lake City Ut 615-030525-245 2.30% 6/24/15 6/24/20 52,000.00        52,000.00         51,408.76                -                   

Bank of Baroda 615-030525-245 1.25% 3/8/13 3/8/18 248,000.00              248,000.00       248,158.72              1,537.26          

Barclays Bank 615-030525-245 1.90% 4/15/14 4/15/19 248,000.00              248,000.00       249,651.68              4,712.00          

BMW Salt Lake City UT 615-030525-245 1.95% 6/20/14 6/20/19 200,000.00              200,000.00       200,766.00              3,900.00          

Capital One Bank Glen Allen VA 615-030525-245 1.00% 11/12/14 11/14/16 96,000.00        96,000.00         96,270.72                476.05             

Capital One Bank Glen Allen VA 615-030525-245 1.25% 1/22/15 1/22/18 100,000.00      100,000.00       100,435.00              -                   

Capital One Bank Glen Allen VA 615-030525-245 2.20% 6/24/15 6/24/20 46,000.00        46,000.00         45,475.60                -                   

Comenity Bank Jumbo Formerly World Finl Network Bank DE615-030525-245 2.10% 6/10/15 6/10/20 200,000.00      200,000.00       200,000.00              -                   

Cit Salt Lake City UT 615-030525-245 0.90% 3/27/13 3/27/17 98,000.00                98,000.00         98,553.70                882.00             

Cit Salt Lake City UT 615-030525-245 2.15% 11/13/14 11/13/19 100,000.00      100,000.00       100,495.00              1,066.16          

Compass Bank 615-030525-245 1.70% 7/31/13 7/31/18 97,000.00                97,000.00         98,180.49                2,217.13          

Discover Bank Greenwood 615-030525-245 1.55% 9/14/11 9/14/15 99,000.00                99,000.00         99,251.46                1,534.50          

Discover Greenwood 615-030525-245 1.15% 4/8/15 4/9/18 98,000.00        98,000.00         97,680.52                -                   

Discover Bank Greenwood 615-030525-245 1.35% 2/1/12 2/1/16 51,000.00                51,000.00         51,284.07                688.50             

Everbank CD Jacksonville FL 615-030525-245 1.10% 4/15/15 4/13/18 150,000.00      150,000.00       149,491.50              -                   

Firstbank of Puerto Rico 6-15-030525-245 1.10% 1/25/13 1/25/17 53,000.00                53,000.00         53,354.04                583.04             

Firstbank of Puerto Rico 615-030525-245 0.90% 3/1/13 3/1/17 196,000.00              196,000.00       197,048.60              1,764.02          

Ge Capital Bank 615-030525-245 1.10% 5/8/14 5/16/17 248,000.00              248,000.00       248,734.08              1,352.79          

GE Money Bank 615-030525-245 1.50% 8/5/11 8/5/15 50,000.00                50,000.00         50,055.00                750.00             

Goldman Sachs Bank 615-030525-245 1.40% 2/1/12 2/1/16 48,000.00                48,000.00         48,280.80                672.00             

Goldman Sachs Bank USA 615-030525-245 1.85% 8/31/11 8/31/16 200,000.00              200,000.00       202,826.00              3,700.00          

JP Morgan Chase Bank 615-030525-245 2.10% 3/31/15 3/31/20 98,000.00        98,000.00         97,680.52                -                   

Lake City Bank 615-030525-245 0.55% 1/29/14 1/29/16 95,000.00                95,000.00         95,096.90                611.30             

Medallion Bank 615-030525-245 1.00% 8/19/13 8/19/16 100,000.00              100,000.00       100,608.00              1,000.00          

Mercantile Bank of Michigan 615-030525-245 2.00% 1/21/11 7/21/15 150,000.00              150,000.00       150,118.50              3,000.00          

Rollstone Bank Fitchburg MA 615-030525-245 1.10% 4/15/15 4/16/18 248,000.00      248,000.00       247,201.44              -                   

Safra National Bank 615-030525-245 0.70% 8/15/13 8/17/15 100,000.00              100,000.00       100,060.00              700.00             

Sallie Mae Bank 615-030525-245 1.10% 8/8/12 8/10/15 97,000.00                97,000.00         97,086.33                1,067.00          

Sallie Mae Bank 615-030525-245 1.70% 8/22/12 8/22/17 150,000.00              150,000.00       152,275.50              3,033.95          

State Bank of India 615-030525-245 2.00% 8/12/11 8/12/16 47,000.00                47,000.00         47,743.07                940.00             

State Bank of India 615-030525-245 2.25% 9/29/10 9/29/15 100,000.00              100,000.00       100,465.00              2,250.00          

Synchrony Draper UT 615-030525-245 1.95% 3/13/15 3/13/20 150,000.00      150,000.00       148,957.50              -                   

Synovus Bank 615-030525-245 0.50% 3/17/14 3/17/16 100,000.00              100,000.00       100,176.00              500.00             

Third Federal Cleveland OH 615-030525-245 1.15% 2/21/14 11/21/17 99,000.00                99,000.00         99,517.77                2,701.24          

Third Federal Cleveland OH 615-030525-245 1.55% 3/26/15 3/26/19 98,000.00        98,000.00         98,052.92                -                   

Wells Fargo Bank in SD 615-030525-245 1.00% 3/28/13 3/29/18 248,000.00              248,000.00       249,215.20              2,480.01          

Average Rate 1.27%
Subtotal - CD's 4,798,000.00           349,000.00      -                        5,147,000.00    5,162,491.79           61,929.13        

47



CITY OF KERMAN
CD/Securities Portfolio
As of June 30, 2015 6/30/2014 6/30/2015 FY to Date

Interest Rate/ Opening Maturity Book Additions/ Book Interest 
Institution Account Number Trans. Date Date Date Balance (Deletions) Cashed In Balance Fair Value Paid

Government Securities:

Subtotal - Government Securities -                           -                   -                        -                    -                          -                   

Central Valley Comm Bank CD
200,000.00              200,000.00       200,000.00              2,680.00          

Total CD and Government Securities Investments 4,998,000.00           349,000.00      -                        5,347,000.00    5,362,491.79           64,609.13        

Chandler Asset Management
Beginning Balance -                           -                    

(City of Kerman) 150,825.51              1,781.34          152,606.85       152,606.85              1,781.34          
Interest -                    

-                    -                   
Chandler Ending Balance Total Chandler Investments 150,825.51              1,781.34          -                        152,606.85       152,606.85              1,781.34          

Central Valley Money Market Acct 015030960
Beginning Balance 2,901,993.40           2,901,993.40    
Interest 7/31/14 286.72             286.72              286.72             

8/31/14 282.39             282.39              282.39             
9/30/14 231.47             231.47              231.47             

10/31/14 236.58             236.58              236.58             
11/30/14 215.31             215.31              215.31             
12/31/14 213.78             213.78              213.78             

1/31/15 255.68             255.68              255.68             
2/28/15 270.06             270.06              270.06             
3/31/15 296.31             296.31              296.31             
4/30/15 247.49             247.49              247.49             
5/31/15 290.16             290.16              290.16             
6/30/15 341.08             341.08              341.08             

-                    -                   
-                    -                   

Transfers In/(Out) 7/10/14 (125,000.00)     (125,000.00)      
8/28/14 (50,000.00)       (50,000.00)        
9/12/14 (500,000.00)     (500,000.00)      
9/19/14 (160,000.00)     (160,000.00)      
10/2/14 350,000.00      350,000.00       

10/16/14 (165,000.00)     (165,000.00)      
11/19/14 (175,000.00)     (175,000.00)      
12/29/15 200,000.00      200,000.00       

1/2/15 400,000.00      400,000.00       
1/7/15 (150,000.00)     (150,000.00)      
1/9/15 (20,000.00)       (20,000.00)        

1/22/15 (175,000.00)     (175,000.00)      
1/29/15 (100,000.00)     (100,000.00)      
1/30/15 700,000.00      700,000.00       
3/20/15 (100,000.00)     (100,000.00)      
3/25/15 (75,000.00)       (75,000.00)        
3/26/15 150,000.00      150,000.00       

4/1/15 (60,000.00)       (60,000.00)        
4/6/15 (496,000.00)     (496,000.00)      

4/27/15 550,000.00      550,000.00       
5/1/15 (100,000.00)     (100,000.00)      

5/14/15 (125,000.00)     (125,000.00)      
5/28/15 900,000.00      900,000.00       

6/2/15 (53,000.00)       (53,000.00)        
6/12/15 (120,000.00)     (120,000.00)      
6/30/15 200,000.00      200,000.00       

-                    

2,901,993.40           704,167.03      -                        3,606,160.43    3,606,160.43           3,167.03          

Subtotal All City Investments 4,998,000.00           349,000.00      -                        5,347,000.00    5,362,491.79           64,609.13        

48



CITY OF KERMAN
CD/Securities Portfolio
As of June 30, 2015 6/30/2014 6/30/2015 FY to Date

Interest Rate/ Opening Maturity Book Additions/ Book Interest 
Institution Account Number Trans. Date Date Date Balance (Deletions) Cashed In Balance Fair Value Paid
SUCCESSOR AGENCY

Total - CD's -                           -                   -                        -                    -                          -                   

CVCB Money Market Accts 015029549
Beginning Balance 131,388.51              131,388.51       
Interest 7/31/14 4.46                 4.46                  4.46                 

8/31/14 4.46                 4.46                  4.46                 
9/30/14 4.03                 4.03                  4.03                 

-                    -                   
-                    -                   
-                    -                   
-                    -                   
-                    -                   
-                    -                   
-                    -                   
-                    -                   

Transfers In/(Out) 9/29/14 (131,397.43)     (131,397.43)      
10/1/14 (4.03)                (4.03)                 

-                    
-                    

Subtotal CVCB Money Market 131,388.51              (131,388.51)     -                        (0.00)                 (0.00)                       12.95               

Subtotal SBI Money Market -                           -                   -                        -                    -                          -                   

Ending Balance - Money Market Accts 131,388.51              (131,388.51)     -                        (0.00)                 (0.00)                       12.95               

Subtotal All Successor Agency Investments 131,388.51              (131,388.51)     -                        (0.00)                 (0.00)                       12.95               

Total Investments 5,280,214.02           219,392.83      -                        5,499,606.85    5,515,098.64           66,403.42        
Market Value Adjustment 15,491.79                

219,392.83       
219,392.83       

-                    

49



    
 

 
  City of Kerman 

“Where Community Comes First” 
 

   

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM 
Stephen Hill Gary Yep 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER    
Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox                      Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: POLICE 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: AUGUST 5, 2015 

To: Mayor and City Council 

From: Chief Joseph Blohm 

Subject: Third Year Funding of State Law Enforcement Grant 

RECOMMENDATION  
 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 

The State of California has legislatively identified funding for three years to be used by law enforcement statewide. 
The BSCC voted to distribute the third year funding of $1,699,324 to Fresno County with allocation to be determined 
by the Fresno County Police Chief’s Association. The Fresno County Chief’s Association (FCCA) elected to use the 
money on a Crime Analyst program, Mental Health Services, Video Policing, and Prisoner Transportation. 
 

The State identified these funds for a three year (3) period, and continuance of this program is contingent upon 
availability of future year funding, and should funding cease, all parties have the option to continue or discontinue their 
participation in this program. 
 

DISCUSSION  
 

Current economic conditions have resulted in budget reductions to law enforcement statewide. To help mitigate these 
reductions, the state budgeted money in the General Fund to create a new program for local police departments. 
These funds are legislatively identified for a period of three years; however, funding beyond that period is uncertain. 
The California Police Chiefs’ Association (CPCA) will seek an increase in funding in future years for sustainability of 
the program. 
 

BSCC voted to distribute the annual funds in grants based on a formula developed by the CPCA. The formula divides 
the money among California's counties based on a number of factors, including local budget cuts, crime trends, and 
the ability of the local agencies to make effective use of the money.  
 

During the third year funding, Fresno County will receive $1,699,324. One city in each county has been identified to 
be the fiduciary agent for this funding and will allocate the funds based on the collective decision of local law 
enforcement. Members of the Fresno Madera Counties Police Chiefs’ Association and a representative of the Fresno 
County District Attorney’s Office met to discuss the allocation of funds, various community needs, and the fiscal 
oversight of funds. It was agreed the Fresno Police Department would be the fiscal agent on behalf of the Association. 
Continuing discussions among representatives have collectively agreed to the allocation of funds as set forth in the 
attached MOU.  

50

mreyes
Typewritten Text

mreyes
Typewritten Text
Council approve Addendum No. 2 to Joint Law Enforcement Memorandum of Understating (MOU) between the County of Fresno, all fifteen cities in the County, and the California Board of State and Community Corrections (BSCC) and authorize the Chief of Police to sign on behalf of the City.

mreyes
Typewritten Text

mreyes
Typewritten Text

mreyes
Typewritten Text

mreyes
Typewritten Text



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 4 
Addendum No. 1 to MOU Board and State Community Corrections 
  

 

Funding provided by the BSCC is intended for front-line law enforcement. The FCPCA has committed to using funds 
regionally, in partnership with probation and other service providers; drawing upon data, and focusing on high-risk, 
serious, violent or habitually non-compliant offenders. The FCPCA believes that the greatest benefit from these funds 
will come from leveraged regional use. Some agencies have already committed resources to address crime impacts 
in their regions, specifically since the implementation of public safety realignment. Use of these funds to augment 
those efforts would be considered within the intent of the allocation. The Fresno County Police Chief’s Association 
agreed to use the dollars to fund two primary activities, described as follows: 
 

Countywide Crime Analysts  
 

Six (6) Crime Analysts have been hired to provide systematic analysis for identifying and analyzing patterns and trends 
in crime. The analysts provide information to metro areas as well as to the rural areas. 
 

The new regional analysts serve to efficiently focus resources on the most serious, violent, habitually non-compliant 
persons who pose the greatest risk to communities while providing the structure and administrative support to 
demonstrate outcomes in the subsequent evaluation of efforts. The Chief’s Association allocated funds toward the 
hiring of six (6) Crime Analysts to develop and maintain an active database that are shared between municipalities.  
 

Training funds were also allocated to allow the Crime Analysts to attend extensive training in the collection and 
dissemination of crime analysis and will provide systematic analysis for identifying and analyzing patterns and trends 
in crime and disorder. Information on patterns help law enforcement agencies deploy resources in a more effective 
manner, and assist detectives in identifying and apprehending suspects. Crime analysis plays a critical role in devising 
solutions to crime problems, and formulating crime prevention strategies. Quantitative social science data analysis 
methods are part of the crime analysis process; though qualitative methods such as examining police report narratives 
also play a role. These positions will allow us to effectively implement a regional effort to track and monitor career 
criminals; and help reduce crime and violence that is occurring in our neighborhoods.  
 
Rural Mental Health Services 
 
An agreement has been made with the Fresno County Department of Behavior Health to increase the mental health 
services to rural areas of Fresno County.  It is recognized that many law enforcement calls for service center on 
individual who suffer from mental health issues.  The intent of this program is to assist law enforcement in dealing with 
these individuals by increasing the availably of mental health professionals. 
 
Video Policing 
 
Video Policing has long been recognized as a successful tool in preventing and deterring criminal activity in our 
communities.  Many of the rural police department lack the funding to initiate a video policing program.  This funding 
is intended to assist the police agencies in creating or enhancing video policing programs to protect high risk areas or 
high value targets in their communities. 
 
Prisoner Transportation 
 
Funds have been directed towards the creation of a countywide prisoner transportation program that will be 
administered by the Fresno County Sheriff’s Department.  The pilot program is intended to assist rural police 
departments by reducing the amount of time expended in the transporting of arrested individuals to the Fresno County 
Jail.  The reduction of the agency’s transportation time will allow agencies to keep their officers on patrol in their cities. 
 

 

51

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Crime
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Crime
http://en.wiktionary.org/wiki/disorder
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Detective
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Suspect
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Social_science


City Council Staff Report    Page 3 of 4 
Addendum No. 1 to MOU Board and State Community Corrections 
  

FISCAL IMPACT  
 

None, these programs are state funded for the first 3 years. At the end of the three year funding period, the City of 
Kerman can elect to continue utilizing the programs for a fee or opt out of the programs. 
 

PUBLIC HEARING  
 

None 
 

Attachments: 
 

A. Addendum No. 1/with Exhibit 
  

52



1 

ADDENDUM NO. 2 
 

TO 
 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF FRESNO, CITY OF CLOVIS, CITIES OF HURON, 

COALINGA, PARLIER, REEDLEY, SELMA, SANGER, KERMAN, KINGSBURG, 
ORANGE COVE, FIREBAUGH, FOWLER, MENDOTA AND COUNTY OF FRESNO 

 
BOARD OF STATE AND COMMUNITY CORRECTIONS (BSCC) 

 
This Addendum No. 2 is made and entered into, effective the  ____ day of May 

2015, by and between the COUNTY OF FRESNO, a political subdivision of the State of 
California (hereinafter referred to as COUNTY), The CITY OF CLOVIS, a municipal 
corporation (hereinafter referred to as CLOVIS),  and the CITIES OF HURON, 
COALINGA, PARLIER, REEDLEY, SELMA, SANGER, KERMAN, KINGSBURG, 
ORANGE COVE, FIREBAUGH, FOWLER, and MENDOTA (hereinafter referred to 
collectively as “CITIES”) acting through their respective governing bodies, , and the 
CITY OF FRESNO, a municipal corporation (hereinafter referred to as CITY) 
(collectively, the “Parties”). 

 
RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS, on September 2, 2013, the Parties entered into a Memorandum of 

Understanding ("MOU") regarding disbursement of funds allocated from the California 
Board of State and Community Corrections ("BSCC") to local law enforcement for front-
line law enforcement needs (the "Program"); and 

 
WHEREAS, on January 16, 2014, the Parties signed Addendum No. 1 to the 

MOU, providing for expenditure of additional $1,168,285 allocated to the Program by 
BSCC; and  
 

WHEREAS, the State of California has subsequently allocated an additional 
$1,699,324 for the Program; and 
  
 WHEREAS, this Addendum No. 2 sets forth the distribution of those funds 
consistent with the terms of the MOU; and  
 

WHEREAS, due to ongoing challenges with linking an electronic filing system 
(“e-filing”) to all law enforcement agencies in Fresno County as contemplated in the 
MOU, the Parties desire to desist funding e-filing as described in the Recitals and 
Section 1 of the MOU when the funds described in Addendum 1 have been expended, 
and such change has been approved by BSCC; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Parties desire that all sections of the MOU and Addendum No. 1 
not altered by this Addendum No. 2 remain in full effect. 

53

mreyes
Typewritten Text

mreyes
Typewritten Text
Attachment 'A'

mreyes
Typewritten Text
  

mreyes
Typewritten Text

mreyes
Typewritten Text
    

mreyes
Typewritten Text

mreyes
Typewritten Text
         

mreyes
Typewritten Text

mreyes
Typewritten Text



2 

 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the above recitals which are contractual 

in nature, the mutual promises contained herein, and for other good and valuable 
consideration hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows:  

 
1. Upon exhaustion of FY 2014-2015 funding allocations, the activities described in 

Section 1 of the MOU shall be deleted from the Program for the remainder of the 
Program.   

2. The last sentence of Section 3 of the MOU is hereby amended as follows, “Upon any 
such termination, any unused Program funds will be reallocated to another party(ies), 
based on consensus of the remaining parties, for an appropriate use pursuant to an 
amendment to this Agreement.” 

3. Section 4 is deleted and replaced with the following: 

Contingent upon availability of State funds, the CITY agrees to allocate to the 
COUNTY an amount of Program funds to cover costs associated with Prisoner 
Transport, Video Policing by the Fresno Sheriff’s Office and Mental Health Triage 
Services by the Fresno County Health Department; to include costs for Reserve 
Officers to transport prisoners for the unincorporated areas of Fresno County; and 
Mental Health Care Field Workers, associated equipment costs and liability 
insurance for purpose of field response where client interaction with law enforcement 
and emergency services personnel typically occurs, and where triage services are 
most beneficial, in the amount of $450,000, such amount and costs shown in 
Revised Exhibit A-1, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 

 
4. Section 5 is deleted and replaced with the following: 

 
Contingent upon the availability of State funds, the CITY agrees to allocate to the City 
of CLOVIS Police Department the amount of $131,403 of Program funds for the 
continued support of a Crime Analyst as an employee of the Clovis Police Department 
to develop and maintain an active data base that can be shared regionally between 
municipalities, training and other operational needs and to fund video policing needs 
for the City of Clovis.  Costs are shown in Revised Exhibit A-1 under CLOVIS. 

 

5. Section 6 is deleted and replaced with the following: 

Contingent upon availability of State funding, the CITY shall use the remaining 
$997,921 of Program funds to hire an additional Crime Analyst, continue supporting 
the current five Crime Analysts, and purchase software and hardware necessary for 
the Crime Analysts related to Quantitative Social Science data analysis and collection.  
CITY will hire one additional Crime Analyst and continue to support the existing five 
Crime Analysts as employees of the Fresno Police Department to develop and 
maintain an active database to be shared regionally between municipalities.  One of 
the six Crime Analysts will be housed at the Kingsburg Police Department and be 
supervised by a Kingsburg supervisor; the position will specifically focus on eastern 
cities in the County. Another Crime Analyst will be housed at the Kerman Police 

54



3 

Department and be supervised by a Kerman supervisor; the position will specifically 
focus on western cities in the County.  The four other Crime Analysts will be housed at 
the Fresno Police Department and supervised by a Fresno Police supervisor; these 
four Crime Analysts will be focused on Fresno metropolitan crime data.  
 
Funds will also be allocated toward training in the collection and dissemination of 
crime analysis and provide systematic analysis for identifying and analyzing patterns 
and trends in crime and disorder, and for costs associated with the development and 
operational needs of the program.  Funding will also be used to hire two Police Cadet 
II’s to provide prisoner transport for the metro areas of Fresno County to include the 
City of Clovis and the City of Fresno; provide mental health training and associated 
overtime costs for all Fresno County law enforcement agencies; provide annual 
subscription costs for CopLink, a data integration system for all law enforcement 
agencies in Fresno County and associated Programming costs to integrate data from 
all agencies into one accessible system; and to enhance the CITY’s body worn 
camera program.   Costs are shown in Revised Exhibit A-1 under CITY.  

 
6. CITY will distribute FY 2015-2016 Program funds pursuant to budgets and tasks set 

forth by the MOU, this Addendum, and Revised Exhibit A-1, upon the execution of 
this Addendum No. 2 by all Parties, and in conjunction with the Parties’ quarterly 
invoices for program activities.  FY 2015-2016 funding will cover, at a minimum, 
Regional Crime Analysis, Prisoner Transport, Mental Health Services and Training, 
Data Integration, and Video Policing, as outlined in Revised Exhibit A-1. 
 

7. All sections of the MOU and Addendum No. 1 not altered by this Addendum and 
Revised Exhibit A-1 remain unchanged. 

 
 
  

55



4 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement in 
Fresno County, California, as of the day and year first hereinabove written. 

 
CITY OF FRESNO 
 
By:    _______  

Jerry Dyer, Chief of Police 
Fresno Police Department 

 
ATTEST: 
YVONNE SPENCE, CMC 
City Clerk, City of Fresno 
 
By:       

Deputy   
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
DOUGLAS SLOAN 
City Attorney, City of Fresno 
 
By:            

Deputy  
 
Address: City of Fresno 
               Attn: Chief Jerry Dyer 
               Fresno Police Department 
               2323 Mariposa Street 
               Fresno, CA 93721 
 
 
CITY OF CLOVIS 

By:       
 Matthew Basgall, Chief of Police 
 
ATTEST: 
Robert Woolley, City Manager 
 
 
By:       
   
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
Attorney for City of Clovis 
 

COUNTY OF FRESNO 
 
By:       

Deborah A. Poochigian, Chairman 
Board of Supervisors 

 
ATTEST: 
BERNICE E. SEIDEL, Clerk 
Board of Supervisors 
 
By:       
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM: 
DANIEL CEDERBORG 
County Counsel 
 
By:       

Deputy 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING 
FORM 
Vicki Crow, C.P.A. 
Auditor-Controller/Treasurer-Tax Collector 
 
By:       

 
FOR APPROVAL: 
 
 
By:       

Margaret Mims, Sheriff 
 

 
Address: 
County of Fresno 
Attn: Margaret Mims, Sheriff 
Fresno County Sheriff’s Department 
2200 Fresno Street 
Fresno, CA 93717 
 
By: _______________________ 
           Behavioral Health 

56



5 

 
By:        
 David Wolfe  
 
Address: City of Clovis 
Attn: Chief Matthew Basgall 
Clovis Police Department 
1233 Fifth Street 
Clovis, CA  93612 
 
 
 

 
Address: 
County of Fresno 
Attn: Department of Behavioral Health 
4411 E. Kings Canyon Road 
Fresno, CA 93702 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

57



6 

 
CITY OF COALINGA 
 
 
By:       
  
Name:       
Title:        
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
Attorney for City of Coalinga 
 
By:        
 
Name:        
 
Address: 
City of Coalinga 
Attn: Chief Calvin Minor 
Coalinga Police Department 
270 N. 6th Street 
Coalinga, CA  93210 
 
 
 
CITY OF FOWLER 
 
 
By:        
 
Name:       
Title:        
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
Attorney for City of Fowler 
 
By:        
 
Name:        
 
 
Address: 
City of Fowler 
Attn: Chief Brand 
Fowler Police Department 
128 S. 5th Street 
Fowler, CA 93625 
 

CITY OF FIREBAUGH 
 
 
By:            
 
Name:       
Title:        
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
Attorney for City of Firebaugh 
 
By:        
 
Name:        
 
Address: 
City of Firebaugh  
Attn: Chief Raygoza 
Firebaugh Police Department 
1575 Eleventh Street 
Firebaugh, CA 93622 
 
 
 
CITY OF KERMAN 
 
 
By:        
 
Name:       
Title:        
                    
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
Attorney for City of Kerman 
 
By:       
 
Name:        
 
 
Address: 
City of Kerman 
Attn: Chief Joseph Blohm 
Kerman Police Department 
850 S. Madera Avenue 
Kerman, CA  93630 
 

58



7 

 
CITY OF HURON 
 
 
By:        
 
Name:        
Title:             
  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
Attorney for City of Huron 
 
By:        
 
Name:        
 
 
Address: 
City of Huron 
Attn: Chief Turegano 
Huron Police Department 
P.O. Box 339 
Huron, CA  93234 
 
 
CITY OF MENDOTA         
  
    
By:            
 
Name:        
Title:                                       
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:        
Attorney for City of Mendota         
 
By:            
 
Name:             
 
Address:          
City of Mendota         
Attn: Chief Gregg Andreotti        
Mendota Police Department 
643 Quince Street 
Mendota, CA 93640  
 
 

 
CITY OF KINGSBURG 
 
 
By:       
                         
Name:       
Title:        
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
Attorney for City of Kingsburg 
 
By:        

 
Name:       
 
Address:      
City of Kingsburg     
Attn: Chief Neil Dadian    
Kingsburg Police Department  
1300 California Street 
Kingsburg, CA 93631 
 
 
 
CITY OF PARLIER    
   
 
By:            
 
Name:       
Title:        
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
Attorney for City of Parlier 
 
By:        
 
Name:        
 
Address: 
City of Parlier 
Attn: Chief David Cerda 
Parlier Police Department 
8770 S. Mendocino Avenue 
Parlier, CA  93648 
 

59



8 

CITY OF ORANGE COVE   
    
 
By:            
 
Name:       
Title:        
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
Attorney for City of Orange Cove 
 
By:        
 
Name:        
 
Address: 
City of Orange Cove 
Attn: Chief Marty Rivera 
Orange Cove Police Department 
550 Center Street 
Orange Cove, CA  93646 
 
 
 
CITY OF SANGER    
   
 
By:            
 
Name:       
Title:        
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
Attorney for City of Sanger 
 
 
By:        
 
Name:       
 
Address: 
City of Sanger 
Attn: Chief Silver Rodriguez 
Sanger Police Department 
1700 - 7th Street 
Sanger, CA 93657 
 

CITY OF REEDLEY    
   
 
By:            
 
Name:       
Title:        
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
Attorney for City of Reedley 
 
By:        
 
Name:        
 
Address: 
City of Reedley 
Attn: Chief Joe Garza 
Reedley Police Department 
843 G Street 
Reedley, CA 93654 
 
 
 
CITY OF SELMA 
 
 
By:        
 
Name:       
Title:        
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
Attorney for City of Selma 
 
 
By:        
 
Name:        
 
Address: 
City of Selma 
Attn: Chief Greg Garner 
Selma Police Department 
1935 E. Front Street 
Selma, CA  93662 
 

60



Revised Exhibit A-1
FY 2015-2016 Budget and Tasks

REVISED EXHIBIT A-1 Qty Cost Funding Cycle 3
COUNTY
Fresno County Sheriff's Office
Reserve Officers 4,253.5hrs X (23.51 per hr) 1 100,000.00  100,000.00             
Total 100,000.00             

Fresno County Department of Behavioral Health
Mental Health Field Workers Salary/Fringe 210,000.00             
Operating Costs 87,500.00               
Facilities/Equipment 17,500.00               
Liability Insurance and Audits 17,500.00               
Computer Costs 17,500.00               
Total 350,000.00             

COUNTY TOTAL 450,000.00             
CLOVIS  
City of Clovis Police Department
Crime Analysts / salary with fringe 1 97,403.00    97,403.00               
Hard ware and software necessary for data 
collection and sharing, and training 1 9,000.00      9,000.00                 
Video Policing Program 1 25,000.00    25,000.00               

CLOVIS TOTAL 131,403.00             
CITY
City of Fresno Police Department
Crime Analysts Salary/Fringe 6 67,823.00    406,941.00             
Public Engines Annual Subscription (all LE 
agencies in Fresno County) 1 100,980.00  100,980.00             
Data Integration (Programmer OT, 
Hardware/Software) 1 70,000.00    70,000.00               
CopLink Annual Subscription 1 30,000.00    30,000.00               
Prisoner Transport (2 Cadet II's Salary/Fringe) 2 45,000.00    90,000.00               
Mental Health Training (Tuition and OT for all LE 
agencies) 1 150,000.00  150,000.00             

Video Policing/Body Cameras (Equipment/Service) 1 150,000.00  150,000.00             
CITY TOTAL 997,921.00             

Small Cities Video Policing (Coalinga, Firebaugh, 
Fowler, Huron, Kingsburg, Kerman, Mendota, 
Orange Cove, Parlier, Reedley, Sanger & 
Selma)12 @ $10,000 ea. 1 120,000.00  120,000.00             

Total 1,699,324.00          

61



   
 

City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

 

 MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
 Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep  
 COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
 Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: CITY ATTORNEY 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: AUGUST 5, 2015 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Hilda Cantū Montoy, City Attorney 
Subject: Resolution Approving First Amendment to Employment Agreement with Police Chief Blohm 

RECOMMENDATION  

Council consider and by motion adopt resolution approving First Amendment to Employment Agreement between 
City and Joseph Kenneth Blohm. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  

The City and Chief Blohm entered an Employment Agreement on July 11, 2011, which ended on July 10, 2015. With 
the departure of the former City Manager, the Council had an Ad Hoc Committee of the Council negotiate a contract 
extension with the Chief. In the meantime, the Chief has continued in carrying out his duties as Chief. The First 
Amendment to the Employment Agreement extends the Agreement for one year and contains a mutual option for an 
additional year. No salary increase is provided in year one of the extended contract. The First Amendment provides 
for adjustments in benefits and clarifies language in the Agreement. Upon appoval by the City Council, the First 
Amendment becomes effective July 11, 2015. 
DISCUSSION 

The First Amendment to Employment Agreement contains the following provisions: 
 

A. Section 1 provides a requirement for a Succession Plan. 
B. Section 2 provides a 5% salary increase if the mutual agreement option for a second year is exercised. 

(No salary increase is provided in the first year of the extended Agreement.) 
C. Section 3 provides for a one year extension of employment effective July 10, 2015, and a mutual 

agreement for an additional year from July 10, 2016, to July 10, 2017. 
D. Section 4 removes liquidated damages language. 
E. Section 5 clarifies At-Will language. 
F. Section 6 provides for an additional ten days of vacation which will be unpaid. 
G. Section 7 increases personal leave days from two to four. 
H. Section 8 includes City-paid fuel as part of the staff vehicle. 

62



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 6 
First Amendment to Employment Agreement with Police Chief Blohm 

  
I. Section 9 provides POST incentive pay. 
J. Section 10 provides that all other language in the Agreement shall continue in full force and effect. 
K. Section 11 provides that the First Amendment shall be effective July 11, 2015. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 

Per Finance Department, the actual cost in year one of the First Amendment is $8,090.49. 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Resolution w/Exhibit 
  

63



City Council Staff Report    Page 3 of 6 
First Amendment to Employment Agreement with Police Chief Blohm 

  
Attachment ‘A’ 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 15-__ 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN APPROVING FIRST AMENDMENT 

TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT WITH POLICE CHIEF JOSEPH K. BLOHM 
 
 WHEREAS, the City and Joseph K. Blohm entered an Employment Agreement on July 11, 2011, 
which ended on July 10, 2015; and 

 WHEREAS, Chief Blohm has continued in carrying out his duties as Chief, and  

 WHEREAS, a contract extension has been negotiated between the City and the Chief; and 

 WHEREAS, the First Amendment to the Employment Agreement attached as Exhibit ‘A’ extends the 
Agreement for one year, provides for adjustments in benefits, makes clarifications and contains a mutual 
option for an additional year to the Agreement.. 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council hereby authorize the First Amendment to 
Employment Agreement and authorize the Interim City Manager to sign on behalf of the City. 

The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman held 
on the 5th day of August 2015, and passed at said meeting by the following vote: 
 
 AYES:  
 NOES:  
     ABSENT:  
    ABSTAIN:  
 
The foregoing resolution is hereby approved. 
 
 
             
        Stephen B. Hill 
        Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
     
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 
  

64



City Council Staff Report    Page 4 of 6 
First Amendment to Employment Agreement with Police Chief Blohm 

  
 

Exhibit ‘A’ 
 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT  
 BETWEEN JOSEPH KENNETH BLOHM AND CITY OF KERMAN 

 
 
 The City of Kerman (“CITY”) and Joseph Kenneth Blohm (“Employee”) agree to enter a First Amendment to 
Employment Agreement (“First Amendment”) as follows: 
 
 WHEREAS, CITY and EMPLOYEE entered an Employment Agreement (“Agreement”) effective July 11, 
2011, and ending July 10, 2015; and 
 
 WHEREAS, CITY AND EMPLOYEE desire to continue the employment relationship beyond July 10, 2015, 
and to modify the Employment Agreement. 
 

AGREEMENT 
 

SECTION 1. Section 1 titled “Duties” of the Agreement is amended by adding the following after the end of paragraph 
two of that section: 
 

Employee shall be required and has agreed to create, present for approval by the City 
Council and implement a Police Department Leadership Succession Plan. The Plan shall be 
submitted on or before the 90 days from the actual signing by both parties of this First 
Amendment to Employment Agreement. 

 
SECTION 2. Section 2A titled “Compensation” of the Agreement is amended by adding the following paragraph to the 
end of that section to read as follows: 
 

If the mutual agreement option set forth in Section 2 of this First Amendment is exercised, 
Employee will receive a five percent (5%) salary increase effective July 11, 2016, based on 
Employee’s current salary on July 10, 2016.  

 
SECTION 3. Section 2B titled “Renewal” of the Agreement is amended to read as follows: 

 
The Employment Agreement which was set to expire on July 10, 2015 is hereby extended. 
The Agreement is extended for one year effective July 11, 2015 and ending July 10, 2016. 
The parties further agree to a mutual agreement option for an additional year from July 11, 
2016 to July 10, 2017. Notice of interest to renew for the additional year shall be provided by 
January 10, 2016. 

 
SECTION 4. Section 2B.3 titled “Liquidated Damages on Employee’s Early Termination” is deleted from the 
Agreement. 
  

65



City Council Staff Report    Page 5 of 6 
First Amendment to Employment Agreement with Police Chief Blohm 

  
SECTION 5. Section 2C titled “Acknowledgement of “At Will Nature of Employment; Notice of Termination of the 
Agreement” is amended to read as follows: 
 

This Agreement creates a mutually binding “at will” employment relationship which may be 
terminated by either party without advance notice or cause, subject to the provisions herein. 
Before voluntarily resigning his position, Employee is requested, but not required to give City 
Manager at least sixty (60) days’ notice in writing of his intention to resign. 

 
SECTION 6. Section 3B titled “Vacation” of the Agreement is amended by adding the following text: 
 

Notwithstanding the accrual provisions in this Section of the Agreement, Employee will be 
permitted to take an additional ten (10) vacation days per year. Those additional ten (10) 
days will not be paid by City. 

 
SECTION 7. Section 3E titled “Personal Leave” of the Agreement is amended to read as follows: 
 

This Employee may designate up to four (4) days of personal leave each year which shall be 
charged against sick leave and shall not be carried over from one year to the next. 
 

SECTION 8. Section 3G titled “Mileage” is of the Agreement is amended to read as follows: 
 

City shall provide Employee with a staff vehicle, radio, and cellular telephone and all 
maintenance, insurance, and operating costs including fuel. The vehicle and cellular 
telephone will be used for Employee’s commute to and from his home and for City business 
and related professional activities only. 
 

SECTION 9. Section 3M is added to the Agreement to read as follows: 
 

M. POST Incentive Pay. Employee shall receive 2.5% pay for his POST Management 
Certificate and 2.5% pay for the POST Executive Certificate. 

 
SECTION 10. Except as amended by this First Amendment, all terms and conditions of the Employment Agreement 
shall continue in full force and effect. 
 
SECTION 11. This First Amendment to Employment Agreement shall be effective on July 11, 2015. 
 
 
[Signatures on next page.] 
  

66



City Council Staff Report    Page 6 of 6 
First Amendment to Employment Agreement with Police Chief Blohm 

  
 
 
CITY OF KERMAN  

 
EMPLOYEE 

  
    
    
John Kunkel, Interim City Manager Joseph Kenneth Blohm, Police Chief 
  
Date:   Date:   
  
  
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM: 
  
  
    
Marci Reyes, City Clerk Hilda Cantú Montoy, City Attorney 
  
 

67



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

  MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
 Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep  
 COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
 Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: PARKS & RECREATION 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: AUGUST 5, 2015  

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Philip Gallegos, Parks and Recreation Department Director 
Subject: Resolution Approving the Purchase of Prefabricated Restroom for Katey’s Kids Park  

RECOMMENDATION  
 

Council by motion adopt a resolution authorizing the City Manager to sign a contract for the purchase of the "Ozark II" 
model precast concrete double restroom from CXT, Inc. in the amount not to exceed $ 83,297.95. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 

CXT Precast Products will provide a prefabricated restroom facility that will be installed at Katey’s Kids Park. The City 
will be using a competitively bid National Joint Power Alliance contract, which was awarded to CXT Precast Products. 
The 2015-2016 Capital budget has sufficient funding for the purchase of restrooms for Katey’s Kids Park, located at 
245 Park Ave. 

OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 

None. 
 

DISCUSSION  

The City of Kerman’s Purchasing Policy, under the Cooperative Purchases section, authorizes the City to join with 
other public entities for the purpose of collectively preparing specifications, requesting and receiving bids, quotations 
or proposals, and making award to the lowest responsible bidder, provided the source selection method used is 
substantially in compliance with the competitive bidding requirements. The cooperative purchasing process 
streamlines purchasing by allowing the City to accept a competitive bid prepared by any federal, state, county or 
municipal government and ensures that goods and services are of the highest quality and the lowest price. 
 
During the design phase of the project, staff researched the feasibility of utilizing a pre-engineered/pre-fabricated 
restroom structure as an alternative to a “construct in place” structure. From this research, it was determined that a 
pre-fabricated restroom structure manufactured by CXT Precast Concrete Products (CXT), offered comparable 
durability at a substantial cost savings. Moreover, CXT’s use of all-concrete construction in their pre-fabricated 
restrooms ensures the building would be easy to maintain and withstand the rigors of vandalism.  

CXT pre-fabricated restrooms meet all ADA requirements and are available in many architectural styles and layouts.  
The CXT Ozark II model (Attachment ‘C’) was ultimately selected due the ability to have a urinal in the men’s 
restroom. 

68



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 12 
Resolution - Cooperative Purchasing  

  
Because of manufacturing time and cost, City staff identified at CXT Precast Products as a vendor/contractor with 
National Joint Powers Alliance (NJPA). The city’s purchasing policies and procedures allow services to be exempt 
from the bidding process when the City is participating in an established governmental cooperative purchasing 
agreement. CXT Precast Products has secured NJPA contract #022113-CXT, with a contract period of April 13, 2013 
through April 23, 2017. The program has been price analyzed, competitively bid, and legally executed by the NJPA. 
The bidding process has been completed so that each individual government entity does not need to repeat the 
process for the same products and services.  

Council’s authorization will allow the City of Kerman to utilize the NJPA contract #022113-CXT to purchase and 
deliver a flush style restroom to this park through CXT Precast Products. Once restroom order is placed it will take 
approximately 60-90 days for delivery. Facility features include: one stall in Women’s restroom, one stall and urinal 
for the Men’s restroom, both accessing from separate exterior doors, stainless steel ADA compliant toilets and sinks, 
skylights, electric hand dryers, timed electric lock system, upgraded exterior and connection to utilities.  

FISCAL IMPACT  
 
The Katey’s Kids Park restroom is in the 2015-2016 Capital budgets. Funds for the purchase of the CXT Restroom 
will be reimbursed by CDBG funding once the project is completed and reimbursement is requested from the County. 
Total cost of the restroom facility will not exceed $ 83,297.95.  

PUBLIC HEARING  
 
None. 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Resolution 
B. Quote 
C. Flyer 
D. Drawings 

69



City Council Staff Report    Page 3 of 12 
Resolution - Cooperative Purchasing  

  
Attachment ‘A’ 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 15-__ 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN AUTHORIZING  
THE PURCHASE OF A PRECAST CONCRETE DOUBLE RESTROOM BUILDING  

FROM CXT, INC. FOR KATEY’S KIDS PARK  
 

WHEREAS, the anticipated popularity of the new Katey’s Kids Park will create a need for restrooms to be 
added as part of the improvements at the Park; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City's purchasing guidelines allow competitive prices to be determined when another public 

agency or public service purchasing agency has administered a competitive bidding process within the last two years 
for similar products or services, and the National Joint Powers Alliance (NJPA) maintains a list of current pricing for 
typical products and services through their competitively Awarded Contract program; and 

 
WHEREAS, CXT, Inc. participates and offers pricing under the NJPA contract program and submitted a 

quote to supply the modified precast concrete "Ozark II" model restroom for $ 83,297.95, including final connection to 
utilities ; and 

 
WHEREAS, the funds for Katey’s Kids Park Restroom project are included in the 2015/16 City budget under 

Capital improvement. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED, that the City Manager is authorized to sign a contract on 
behalf of the City for the purchase of a "Ozark II" restroom building with specified options from CXT, Inc. in the 
amount  not to exceed$ 83,297.95,  
 
The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman held on the 5th 
day of August 2015, and passed at said meeting by the following vote: 
 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

 
The foregoing resolution is hereby approved. 
 

_____________________________ 
Stephen B. Hill 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 

70



City Council Staff Report    Page 4 of 12 
Resolution - Cooperative Purchasing  

  
Attachment ‘B’ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

71



City Council Staff Report    Page 5 of 12 
Resolution - Cooperative Purchasing  

  

 

72



City Council Staff Report    Page 6 of 12 
Resolution - Cooperative Purchasing  

  

 

73



City Council Staff Report    Page 7 of 12 
Resolution - Cooperative Purchasing  

  

 

74



City Council Staff Report    Page 8 of 12 
Resolution - Cooperative Purchasing  

  
Attachment ‘C’ 

 

 

75



City Council Staff Report    Page 9 of 12 
Resolution - Cooperative Purchasing  

  

 

76



City Council Staff Report    Page 10 of 12 
Resolution - Cooperative Purchasing  

  
Attachment ‘D’ 

 

77



City Council Staff Report    Page 11 of 12 
Resolution - Cooperative Purchasing  

  
 

78



City Council Staff Report    Page 12 of 12 
Resolution - Cooperative Purchasing  

  
 

79



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

 

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep  
COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: AUGUST 5, 2015 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Jerry Jones, City Engineer 
Subject: Resolution Awarding Contract for the California Avenue Reconstruction Project 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council by motion adopt resolution awarding the contract for the California Avenue Reconstruction Project to Don 
Berry Construction, Inc. in the amount of $678,679.24 and authorize the City Manager to sign the agreement. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY   
 
The California Avenue Reconstruction Project will reconstruct California Avenue from Del Norte Avenue to Madera 
Avenue. Bids were received from five contractors on Tuesday, July 28, 2015. The lowest responsive bid was 
submitted by Don Berry Construction, Inc. in the amount of $644,000.24 for the Base Bid. The Engineer’s Estimate 
for the Base Bid was $610,000.00. Two additive alternates were also included in the bid for the construction of curb 
bulbouts on California at the intersection of Manor Drive and First Street. Due to the fact that the bids received were 
higher than expected, Staff recommends that only the Base Bid and Additive Alternate #2 be awarded to the 
contractor. The bid submitted by Don Berry for Additive Alternate #2 was in the amount of $34,679.00. The total 
amount of the Base Bid and Additive Alternate #2 is $678,679.24. 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
None. 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
The California Avenue Reconstruction Project is included in the City’s Capital Improvement Program. The project 
will replace the existing pavement section on California Avenue from Del Norte Avenue to Madera Avenue in order 
to provide a smooth street surface, capable of supporting the typical vehicle loads on the street. A Vicinity Map is 
included as Attachment ‘B’.  
 
The existing pavement along the subject section of California Avenue is designated as Very Poor in the City’s 
Pavement Management System. In addition, the project will replace existing concrete curb and gutter, sidewalks, 
valley gutters, and driveways that are damaged or deficient. New curb ramps will be constructed at all intersections 
in compliance with Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) regulations.  
 

  

80



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 7 
Contract Award – California Ave. Reconstruction 
  
Bids were received from five contractors on Tuesday, July 28, 2015, and the results are as follows: 
 

Contractor Base Bid Add. Alt. #1 Add. Alt. #2 Total 
Don Berry Construction $644,000.24 $25,005.00 $34,679.00 $703,684.24 
Emmett Valley Construction $644,195.40 $23,749.00 $35,498.00 $703,442.40 
Emmett’s Excavation $736,079.60 $23,834.00 $34,190.00 $794,103.60 
Seal Rite Paving & Grading $753,742.95 $26,963.64 $46,747.14 $827,453.73 
Lee’s Paving $961,899.90 $24,499.00 $44,116.00 $1,030,514.90 
     
Engineer’s Estimate $610,000.00 $18,000.00 $27,000.00 $655,000.00 

 
The Public Contract Code requires that the bid documents state how bids with additive alternates are to be 
compared. The project specifications state that the bid will be awarded to the contractor with the lowest Base Bid. 
The bids were analyzed and Don Berry Construction, Inc. was determined to have submitted the lowest responsive 
bid and they are a responsible contractor. 

 
In addition to the Base Bid, Council may choose to award Additive Alternate #1, Additive Alternate #2, both, or 
neither as part of the contract. Additive Alternate #1 includes the construction of curb bulbouts, signing, and striping 
at the intersection of California Avenue and Manor Drive. Additive Alternate #2 includes the construction of curb 
bulbouts, signing, and striping at the intersection of California Avenue and First Street. Both additive alternates are 
aimed to provide new, high visibility pedestrian crossings for access to the master-planned sidewalk on the south 
side of California. The proposed curb bulbouts for Additive Alternate #1 and #2 are shown on exhibits included as 
Attachment ‘C’ and Attachment ‘D’, respectively. 
 
Due to the fact that the bids received for the project were higher than anticipated, it is not possible to award the 
Base Bid and both Additive Alternates and stay within the project budget. The total construction budget for the 
project is $679,000, including contingency. The following table compares potential award options for the bid 
submitted by Don Berry Construction versus the project budget. 
 

Award Option Contract Amount Surplus/Shortfall 
Base Bid Only $644,000.24 $34,999.76 
Base Bid + Add. Alt. #1 $669,005.24 $9,994.76 
Base Bid + Add. Alt. #2 $678,679.24 $320.76 
Base Bid + Add. Alt. #1 & #2 $703,684.24 ($24,684.24) 

 
Staff recommends that Additive Alternate #2, in addition to the Base Bid, be awarded to the contractor. A new 
crossing at First Street will provide a crossing mid-way between Del Norte Avenue and Madera Avenue. In addition, 
First Street provides access to both Kerman Middle School and Kerman High School. Staff does not recommend 
deferring the improvements to a later date. Constructing the curb bulbouts at this location at a later date would be 
un-economical, as it will necessitate the removal of infrastructure assets installed with the current project.  

  

81



City Council Staff Report    Page 3 of 7 
Contract Award – California Ave. Reconstruction 
  
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
The project is included in the budget in the amount of $792,000 to be funded by Local Transportation Funds. The 
budgeted amount includes design, bidding, construction management, testing, and construction. The construction 
budget for the project is $679,000, including contingency. Staff’s recommends awarding the Base Bid and Additive 
Alternate #2, in the amount of $678,679.24, resulting in a minimal contingency of $321 available in the project 
budget. A contingency amount equal to 5-10% of the contract amount is typically included in the project budget to 
account for unforeseen issues. If unforeseen issues arise during construction that necessitate change orders, the 
project cost will likely exceed the amount included in the City’s budget. A budget amendment may be necessary 
upon completion of the project to account for any construction costs above the amount budgeted. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
Not Required. 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Resolution 
B. Vicinity Map 
C. Exhibit – Additive Alternate #1 
D. Exhibit – Additive Alternate #2 

 
 
  

82



City Council Staff Report    Page 4 of 7 
Contract Award – California Ave. Reconstruction 
  

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-__ 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN 
AWARDING CONTRACT TO DON BERRY CONSTRUCTION, INC. 
 FOR THE CALIFORNIA AVENUE RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT 

 
 WHEREAS, the Invitation to Bid for the California Avenue Reconstruction Project in the City of Kerman was listed in 
the Kerman News on July 8 and 15 , 2015 and;  
 WHEREAS, the project will consist of the reconstruction of California Avenue from Del Norte Avenue to Madera 
Avenue, including concrete improvements in the City of Kerman; and 
 WHEREAS, the following bids for the project were publicly opened and read aloud at the Kerman City Hall on July 28, 
2015 at 2:00 p.m.: 
 

 Contractor Base Bid Add. Alt. #1 Add. Alt. #2 Total 
Don Berry Construction $644,000.24 $25,005.00 $34,679.00 $703,684.24 
Emmett Valley Construction $644,195.40 $23,749.00 $35,498.00 $703,442.40 
Emmett’s Excavation $736,079.60 $23,834.00 $34,190.00 $794,103.60 
Seal Rite Paving & Grading $753,742.95 $26,963.64 $46,747.14 $827,453.73 
Lee’s Paving $961,899.90 $24,499.00 $44,116.00 $1,030,514.90 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Engineer’s Estimate was $610,000 for the Base Bid, $18,000.00 for Additive Alternate #1, 
$27,000.00 for Additive Alternate #2, and $655,000.00 for the Total Bid; 

WHEREAS, the bid documents state that the bids will be compared on the basis of the Base Bid. 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN RESOLVES upon the recommendation of the 
City Engineer that the California Avenue Reconstruction Project be awarded to: Don Berry Construction, Inc., P.O. Box 620, 
Selma, CA 93662 in the amount of Six Hundred Seventy-Eight Thousand Six Hundred Seventy-Nine Dollars and Twenty-Four 
Cents ($678,679.24), and that the City Manager is authorized to sign the City's standard form of agreement for construction 
projects, as contained in the bid package on behalf of the City of Kerman. 
 
The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman held on the 5th day of 
August, 2015, and passed at said meeting by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

The foregoing resolution is hereby approved. 
 
                                                                                  
       Stephen B. Hill  

Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
      
Marci Reyes 

City Clerk

83



City Council Staff Report    Page 5 of 7 
Contract Award – California Ave. Reconstruction 
  

Attachment ‘B’ 

 

84



City Council Staff Report    Page 6 of 7 
Contract Award – California Ave. Reconstruction 
  

Attachment ‘C’ 

 

85



City Council Staff Report    Page 7 of 7 
Contract Award – California Ave. Reconstruction 
  

Attachment ‘D’ 

 

86



 
 

City of Kerman 

A Place Where “Community Comes First” 
  

   

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM 
Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox                     Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
STAFF REPORT

CITY COUNCIL MEETING
MEETING DATE: AUGUST 5, 2015

   
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Olivia Pimentel, Planning and Development Department  
Subject: Agreement with Crown Homes for the Deferment of Certain Fees Concerning Construction of 

20 Homes in Kerman Estates Tract 5478 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Council by motion adopt resolution approving the agreement with Crown Homes to defer certain fees 
concerning construction of 20 homes in Kerman Estates Tract 5478 and authorize the Mayor to execute the 
agreement. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
Crown Homes (“CROWN”), recently purchased 20 lots (“CROWN Lots”) depicted in Attachment ‘A’ from 
United Security Bank and has requested a deferral of payment of the certain fees until such time as CROWN 
requests a certificate of occupancy for any home constructed on a CROWN Lot. The proposed Agreement 
would allow CROWN to defer payment of all Development Impact Fees (defined further herein) and certain 
Improvement Fees (defined further herein) approved by the City to complete or repair certain defined 
improvements within Tract 5478 and widen Whitesbridge Road. The Development Impact Fees to be deferred 
total $12,920.00 per lot. A list identifying said fees is attached hereto as Attachment ‘B’ and as Exhibit ‘A’ to 
the proposed Agreement set forth in Attachment ‘C.’ The Improvement Fees, individually referred to as 
Internal Improvement Repairs Fee and Whitesbridge Improvement Fee, (collectively referred as 
“Improvement Fees”) total $9,041.00 per lot. The Improvement Fees are to be applied toward the cost to 
complete or repair in-tract improvements and complete the widening of Whitesbridge Road, both of which 
were conditions of the City’s approval of Tract 5478 (see Exhibit ‘B’ to Attachment ‘C’). The proposed 
Agreement (Attachment ‘C’) allows CROWN to defer the payment of the Development Impact Fees and 
Improvement Fees on 20 homes until such time as CROWN requests a certificate of occupancy for each 
home constructed on the CROWN Lots. 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES 
 
None. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
In January, 2015, as part of negotiations with another developer owning lots within Tract 5478 staff obtained 
new estimates for the cost for the completion and/or repair of certain in-tract and the completion of the widening 

87



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 20 
Agreement with CROWN, INC. – Tract 5478 
 

of Whitesbridge Road, (State Route 180) to ensure subsequent developers of lots within Tract 5478 pay their 
fair share cost of completing and/or repairing the in-tract improvements and the widening of Whitesbridge Road 
both of which were conditions to the City’s original approval of Tract 5478. 
 
The original estimate of $285,722.00 for the in-tract repairs and $737,131.00 for the off-site improvements 
totaling $1,022,853.00 was obtained in September of 2011. As reflected in the table below, the revised estimate 
shows a slight decrease in the costs for the in-tract repairs and a slight increase in the cost for the off-site 
repairs. Overall, the total cost increased by $13,939.  
 

Table 1 
Improvements Original Estimate Revised Estimate Difference 

In-Tract Repairs $285,722 $275,022 ($10,660) 
Off-Site Improvements $737,131 $761,730 $24,559 

Total $1,022,853 $1,036,792 $13,939 
 
Based on the revised estimates, the fair share contribution per lot for the remaining 95 lots is $9,041.00. As 
shown in Table 2, the new per lot fee has been adjusted in the new agreement to reflect the per lot fee collected 
on the initial 20 lots totaling $177,880.00. This amount is deducted from the new estimate of $1,036,792 with 
the revised costs divided by the remaining 95 lots for a per lot cost of $9,041.00 (“Improvement Fee”).  

Table 2 
Original Agreement Interior Repairs Whitesbridge Total 

Original Estimates $285,722.50 $737,131.40 $1,022,853.90 
Per Lot Fee (Total÷115 Lots) 2,485.54 6,409.84 8,895.38 
RJ Hill Per Lot Fee (10 Lots) 24,850.00 64,090.00 88,940.00 
CROWN Per Lot Fee (10 Lots) 24,850.00 64,090.00 88,940.00 
Total Per Lot Fees (20 Lots)   177,880.00 
    

Amended Agreement Interior Repairs Whitesbridge Total 
New Estimates $275,062.01 $761,730.67 $1,036,792.68 
Less Per Lot Fee (Initial 20 
Lots) 

(49,700.00) (128,180.00) (177,880.00) 

Revised Costs 225,362.00 633,550.67 858,912.67 
New Per Lot Fee (95 Lots) 2,372.00 6,669.00 9,041.00 

 
 
On July 7, 2015, the City of Kerman received a request from CROWN to defer payment of Development Impact 
Fees and Improvement Fees until such time as CROWN requests a certificate of occupancy on a home 
constructed on any of the 20 CROWN Lots. Council is being asked to consider an agreement, in the form 
attached hereto, with CROWN to allow for the construction of 20 homes on the CROWN Lots without payment 
of the Development Impact Fees, estimated to be $12,920.00 per lot; and; without payment of the Improvement 
Fee of $9,041.00, per lot, until such time as each home is complete, a final inspection has occurred and 
CROWN seeks a certificate of occupancy on each home. To date, no homes have been constructed by this 
developer. 
 
The proposed agreement provides that upon completion of a house on a CROWN Lot for which CROWN has 
satisfied certain specified conditions, including but not limited to final inspection, proof of payment for Regional 
Transportation Mitigation Fees, and payment of the Development Impact Fees and Improvement Fees, the 

88



City Council Staff Report    Page 3 of 20 
Agreement with CROWN, INC. – Tract 5478 
 

City will issue a certificate of occupancy for that home. The Parties understand that the City will not be obligated 
to issue building permits or certificates of occupancy if there is an uncured default or breach under this 
agreement. This agreement applies only to the 20 CROWN Lots, and does not obligate City to issue additional 
building permits or certificates of occupancy as to other lots until the improvements required by the Subdivision 
Agreement have been completed. 
 
The agreement also requires that CROWN shall make written disclosure to purchasers of the CROWN Lots 
that City has not accepted the streets, sidewalks, or other public infrastructure improvements within Tract 5478 
as complete, and that further construction work will be required in the future before the improvements are 
complete.  
 
Upon satisfaction of the requirements provided in the proposed agreement, including payment of all fees, then 
as to any such lot, neither CROWN, nor his successors in interest, will have any further obligation to make 
additional contributions for the construction of the improvements.  
 
The City has entered similar deferral agreements with other lot owners/developers within Tract 5478. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
To allow the construction of twenty (20) new single family homes in Tract 5478 by requiring the 
builder/developer to pay a fair share contribution on a per lot basis to fund the completion of the infrastructure 
improvement in the tract and to pay development impact fees prior to certificate of occupancy of each lot. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
None required. 
 
Attachments: 

 
A. Map of CROWN Lots, Tract 5478 
B. List of Development Impact Fees 
C. Resolution w/Exhibits 
D. Request from CROWN dated July 7, 2015 

  

89



City Council Staff Report    Page 4 of 20 
Agreement with CROWN, INC. – Tract 5478 
 

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

CROWN Lots – Tract 5478 
 

 
 
 

 
  
 
 CROWN – 20 Lots 
 
  

90



City Council Staff Report    Page 5 of 20 
Agreement with CROWN, INC. – Tract 5478 
 

Attachment ‘B’ 
 

 
  

91



City Council Staff Report    Page 6 of 20 
Agreement with CROWN, INC. – Tract 5478 
 

Attachment ‘C’ 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-__ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN APPROVING  
AGREEMENT WITH CROWN HOMES FOR THE DEFERMENT OF CERTAIN FEES CONCERNING 

CONSTRUCTION OF 20 HOMES IN KERMAN ESTATES TRACT 5478 
 

 WHEREAS, Crown Homes (CROWN”), has purchased 20 lots that are part of Tract 5478 from United 
Security Bank; and 
 
 WHEREAS, CROWN has requested a deferral of payment of certain fees until such time as CROWN 
requests a certificate of occupancy for any home constructed on a CROWN Lot; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed Agreement  allows CROWN to defer the payment of the Development Impact 
Fees and Improvement Fees on 20 homes until such time as CROWN requests a certificate of occupancy for each 
home constructed on the CROWN Lots; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed Agreement is consistent with prior Agreements deferring fees on Tract 5478 
lots. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Kerman as follows;  

1. The foregoing recitals are incorporated by reference. 
 

2. The Council hereby approves the agreement attached as Exhibit ‘A’ with CROWN to construct 
homes on the 20 lots that CROWN owns in Tract 5478 and authorizes the Mayor to execute the 
agreement on behalf of the City.  
 The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Kerman held on the 5th day of August, 2015 and passed at said meeting by the following vote:  

 
AYES:   
NOES:   
ABSENT:   
ABSTAIN:   
 

The foregoing resolution is hereby approved.  

        ______________________________  
        Stephen B. Hill  
        Mayor  
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________  
Marci Reyes  
City Clerk  

92



City Council Staff Report    Page 7 of 20 
Agreement with CROWN, INC. – Tract 5478 
 

 
RECORDED AT THE REQUEST OF, AND 
WHEN RECORDED, RETURN TO: 
 
CITY CLERK 
CITY OF KERMAN 
850 S. MADERA AVENUE 
KERMAN, CA 93630 
 

        NO RECORDING FEE GOV. CODE 27383 
       
     SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR RECORDER'S USE 
 

AGREEMENT TO DEFER CERTAIN FEES 
CONCERNING THE CONSTRUCTION OF 20 HOMES 

IN KERMAN ESTATES TRACT 5478 
 

This Agreement to Defer Certain Fees Concerning the Construction of 20 Homes in Kerman Estates Tract 5478 
(“Agreement”), is made as of August __, 2015, by and between the City of Kerman, a California general law city, 
(City), and Crown Homes, “Crown”). City and Crown are sometimes referred to individually as “Party” and 
collectively as “Parties.” 
 

RECITALS 
 

A. On or about August 24, 2006, City and Pacific Mountain Partners, L.L.C., a California Limited Liability 
Company, the original developer of Tract 5478 (“Pacific”), entered into a Subdivision Agreement for Tract No. 
5478, as a condition of City’s approval of a subdivision map for Tract No. 5478 (“Subdivision Agreement”); 
recorded on November 9, 2006 as Document No. 2006-0238844 in the Official Records of the County of 
Fresno, State of California. 

 
B. The Subdivision Agreement sets forth the terms and conditions under which Pacific would construct certain 

public improvements, including the widening of Whitesbridge Road, which were conditions of the City’s 
approval of Tract No. 5478. 

 
C. Pacific became insolvent before satisfactorily completing the said improvements described in the Subdivision 

Agreement. 
 

D. The incomplete improvements are detailed in the plans on file with the City Clerk prepared by Yamabe & Horn 
Engineering, Inc. titled "City of Kerman, Kerman Estates Tract 5478, Reconstruct Interior Improvements," 
dated September 8, 2011 consisting of 2 sheets and listing 62 items of construction or repair, hereinafter 
referred to as "Interior Improvement Repairs", and in the Proposal to the City of Kerman, Whitesbridge Road 
Widening, Tract 5478, Kerman Estates, hereinafter referred to as Whitesbridge Road Widening, attached 
hereto as Exhibit ‘B’. The Interior Improvement Repairs and the Whitesbridge Road Widening are sometimes 
collectively referred as “Improvements.” 

 
E. City has filed an action against Pacific’s bonding company, Western Insurance Company, but that action has 

been stayed because Western Insurance has become insolvent, and is currently in liquidation proceedings 
conducted by the Insurance Commissioner for the State of Utah. 

 

93



City Council Staff Report    Page 8 of 20 
Agreement with CROWN, INC. – Tract 5478 
 

F. In or about February, 2015, City obtained estimates for the completion and/or repair of the Interior 
Improvements and the Whitesbridge Road Widening. The estimate for construction of the Whitesbridge Road 
Widening was $761,730.67. The estimate for the Tract 5478 Interior Improvement Repairs was $275,062.01. 
The combined total for the Improvements amounted to $1,036,792.68. 

 
G. City has been notified that the Insurance Commissioner has approved City’s claim for $1,022,853.90 to 

complete the Improvements. However, the Insurance Commissioner reports that as of May 31, 2013, Western 
Insurance had total assets of $15,092,751.68, and total liabilities of $135,138,869.18. If total liabilities all 
become approved claims, City may receive only about $114,235.67 as its Claim Payment. At this point it is 
unknown when or what amount Kerman may receive as its Claim Payment. 

 
H. United Security Bank (“Bank”) foreclosed on several deeds of trust from Pacific, and by Trustee’s Deeds 

recorded on January 12, 2009, in the Official Records of the County of Fresno as Documents 2009-0003586, 
-0003588 and -0003589, became the owner of 129 residential lots in Tract No. 5478. Homes have not yet 
been built on 115 of those lots. 

 
I. The City has determined that subsequent developers of Tract 5478 shall pay $9,041 per lot developed to 

cover the cost of completing and/or repairing the Improvements (“Improvement Fee”). The Improvement Fee 
is a “fair share contribution” and is based upon bids that City obtained in or about February, 2015, for the 
construction of the Whitesbridge Road Widening required by the Subdivision Agreement in the amount of 
$761,730.67, and the bid for the Tract 5478 Interior Improvement Repairs in the amount of $275,062.01 for a 
total of $1,036,792.68. There are 95 undeveloped lots in Tract 5478 which lots are not presently subject to an 
agreement regarding their fair share contribution, and the fair share that each of the remaining lots must 
contribute for the construction of the Whitesbridge Road Widening and the Tract 5478 Interior Improvement 
Repairs is $9,041 ($1,036,792 - $177,880 = $858,912 ÷ 95 lots = $9,041.00) 

 
J. The City has also established two funds, the “Tract 5478 Interior Improvement Fund” and the “Whitesbridge 

Road Widening Improvement Fund” (collectively referred to as “Improvement Fees”) wherein said 
Improvement Fees are proportionally deposited upon payment and held for the future completion and/or repair 
of the Improvements. 

 
K. Developers of lots within Tract 5478 are also required to pay certain development impact fees more 

specifically in Exhibit ‘A’ currently estimated at $12,920.00 per lot (“Development Impact Fees”). 
 

L. The City has previously entered agreements with other developers of lots within Tract 5478 for the deferral of 
the payment of the Development Impact Fees and the Improvement Fee to the certificate of occupancy. 

 
M. Crown has purchased 20 lots from the Bank, commonly identified as Lots 32 through 43 and 91 through 98 

of Tract 5478 and legally described in Exhibit ‘C’ (“Crown Lots”)... 
 
N.  Crown and City wish to enter into this Agreement, similar to those previously entered between City and other 

developers of lots within Tract 5478, to defer the payment of the Improvement Fee on each lot until such time 
as Crown seeks and the City is prepared to issue, a certificate of occupancy.  

  

94



City Council Staff Report    Page 9 of 20 
Agreement with CROWN, INC. – Tract 5478 
 

AGREEMENT 
 

  NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals, the promises and covenants of the 
Parties to this Agreement and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which the 
Parties acknowledge, the Parties agree as follows: 
 
 
1. Truth of Recitals. The recitals set forth above are true and correct. 

 
2. Whitesbridge Road Widening: The Parties acknowledge that completion of the Whitesbridge Road Widening 

Improvement is required pursuant to the Subdivision Agreement for Tract 5478. The Parties further 
acknowledge that Whitesbridge Road is a State Highway, and any work on it will require payment of prevailing 
wages. Any work performed by the City or its contractors will also require the payment of prevailing wages.  

 
3. Estimates. The Parties acknowledge and understand that estimates for the Interior Improvement Repairs and 

the Whitesbridge Road Widening are only estimates and the actual cost to complete the Whitesbridge Road 
Widening Improvements and the Interior Improvement Repairs is unknown and may differ. The Parties also 
acknowledge and understand that Development Impact Fees, as identified in Exhibit ‘A’, are currently 
estimated to be $12,920.00 per lot, those fees are subject to change and currently just estimates based upon 
the City’s current fee schedule. 

 
4. Existing Improvements Not Accepted by City. The Parties acknowledge that City has not accepted the streets 

and sidewalks offered for dedication in Tract 5478, and, except for the Crown Lots, improvements may not be 
constructed until such time as United Security Bank has given permission to construct the improvements 

 
5. Conditions for Issuance of Building Permits.  
 

A. Upon execution of this Agreement and upon submission of a properly completed applications for 
building permits, payment of the permit fees, including, but not limited to normal and usual plan check 
fees as may be necessary to comply with current uniform building codes, and receipt of written 
instructions from Kerman Unified School District regarding the payment of school fees, City will issue 
building permits to Crown for the Crown Lots. 
 

B. City agrees to defer the collection of the Development Impact Fees and the Improvement Fees in 
connection with each of the Crown Lots until such time as a certificate of occupancy is requested for 
each Lot. 

 
6. Conditions Precedent for Issuance of Certificates of Occupancy. 
 

A. Upon completion of the construction of any home on the Crown Lots, including the construction of 
any improvements legally required for the safe and convenient occupancy of each home, and upon 
receiving satisfactory final inspections, Crown may apply for a certificate of occupancy. As a 
conditions precedent (collectively “Conditions Precedent”) to City’s obligation to issue a certificate of 
occupancy for any Crown Lot, Crown shall provide, to the satisfaction of City the following: 
 
1) Written evidence in a form reasonably acceptable to City that Kerman Unified School District 

development impact fees have been paid for that lot; 

95



City Council Staff Report    Page 10 of 20 
Agreement with CROWN, INC. – Tract 5478 
 

 
2) Payment of City of Kerman Development Impact Fees specified in Exhibit ‘A’ attached hereto at 

the rate in effect at the time of payment; and 
 

3) Payment of County of Fresno Facilities Impact Fees and the Regional Transportation Mitigation 
Fees in effect at the time of payment; and 
 

4) Payment of the Improvement Fees.  
 

B. Subject to the provisions contained herein, as to each house on a Crown Lot for which Crown has 
satisfied the Conditions Precedent described in Paragraph 6.A. above; and provided Crown is not is 
default or breach of this Agreement, or other conditions affection the health, safety and welfare of the 
public prohibiting the City from issuing a certificate of occupancy do not exist, City shall issue a 
certificate of occupancy. City, in City’s sole and absolute discretion, may require Crown complete the 
Interior Improvement Repairs after Crown has received certificates of occupancy for 20 completed 
homes within Tract 5478 (including any homes completed pursuant to prior agreements between City 
and Crown). The cost of constructing Tract 5478 Interior Improvement Repairs shall be reimbursed 
to Crown by City, from the Tract 5478 Interior Improvement Repair Fund and/or the Whitesbridge 
Road Widening Improvement Fund, according to the City’s customary progress payment practices.  

 
C. Until Tract 5478 Interior Improvement Repairs have been completed and accepted by City, Crown 

shall disclose to purchasers of the Crown Lots that City has NOT ACCEPTED the streets, sidewalks, 
or other public infrastructure improvements within Tract 5478 as complete, and that further 
construction work will be required in the future before the improvements are complete. 

 
7. Funding and Construction of Improvements. 
 
  A. Deposits.  City will deposit the Improvement Fee received for each Crown Lot, in two funds to be 
established and held by City as follows:  
 

1) $6,669.00 of each Improvement Fee paid shall be deposited into the “Whitesbridge Road 
Widening Improvements Fund” to be used toward the completion of the Whitesbridge Road 
Widening as described in the Proposal to the City of Kerman, Whitesbridge Road 
Widening, Tract 5478, Kerman Estates attached hereto as Exhibit ‘B’.  

 
2) $2,372.00 of each Improvement Fee paid shall be deposit into the “Tract 5478 Interior 

Improvement Repairs Fund” to be used to satisfactorily reconstruct or repair those 
improvements described in the plans on file with the City Clerk prepared by Yamabe & 
Horn Engineering, Inc. titled "City of Kerman, Kerman Estates Tract 5478, Reconstruct 
Interior Improvements," dated September 8, 2011 consisting of 2 sheets and listing 62 
items of construction or repair. (collectively “Deposits”). 

 
B. Use of Funds.  When the City, in the exercise of its absolute discretion, determines that it has 

sufficient funds in the Whitesbridge Road Widening Improvements Fund, and/or in the Tract 5478 
Interior Improvement Repairs Fund, it shall obtain competitive bids and award a contract for the 
construction and completion of relevant improvement. As previously noted in Paragraph 5 B above, 
City may arrange with Crown to complete the Interior Improvement Repairs. The parties acknowledge 

96



City Council Staff Report    Page 11 of 20 
Agreement with CROWN, INC. – Tract 5478 
 

that City has not accepted the streets and sidewalks offered for dedication in Tract 5478, and, except 
for the Crown Lots, improvements may not be constructed until such time as Bank has given 
permission to construct the improvements. 

 
C. Claim Proceeds.  City shall deposit to the Whitesbridge Road Widening Improvement Fund any 

amounts it receives from its Claim Payment from the Utah Insurance Commissioner in connection 
with City’s claim against Western Insurance, after City has first reimbursed itself for its costs, 
attorney’s fees and other expenses incurred in connection with its efforts to enforce the Subdivision 
Agreement the security bonds, and the discussions and negotiations leading up to, and culminating 
in this Agreement, together with any subsequent expense incurred to enforce or administer this 
Agreement or other agreements for the completion of Tract 5478 (“Claims Proceeds”). 

 
D. Excess Funds in Whitesbridge Road Widening Improvement Fund. If the Deposits and Claims 

Proceeds detailed above exceed the total cost for completing the Whitesbridge Road Widening 
Improvement, City shall refund the excess funds to the persons who contributed them in proportion 
to their contribution. If construction of the Whitesbridge Road Widening Improvement is completed 
for a cost that is less than the estimate, then for lots where the Improvement Fee has not yet been 
paid, the Improvement Fee will be adjusted; and for lots which have paid the Improvement Fee, 
refunds will be provided, so that all lots will have contributed a proportionally fair share to the cost of 
constructing the Whitesbridge Road Widening Improvement. City shall only provide refunds when all 
entitled to the refunds have agreed in writing as to the correct proportional distribution. If the persons 
entitled to refunds have not agreed within 6 months of City’s determination that refunds are 
appropriate, the City will deposit the funds with the Fresno County Superior Court and file an 
interpleader action to allow the Court to determine the appropriate distribution. 
 

E. Other City Funds. The City reserves the right, in its sole and absolute discretion, to allocate other City 
funds to the completion of the Whitesbridge Road Widening Improvement or the Tract 5478 Interior 
Improvement Repairs; or, apply for grants for that purpose (collectively “Other City Funds”). In the 
event that the City expends Other City Funds for the completion of the Whitesbridge Road Widening 
Improvement and/or the Tract 5478 Interior Improvement Repairs in an amount that exceeds the sum 
of the Deposits and Claims Proceeds any remaining portion of the relevant Fund shall be retained by 
City for use as it may determine. 

 
8. Authority to Execute Agreement. The Parties represent that they have the sole right and exclusive authority 

to execute this Agreement. Each of the Parties further warrant, represent and agree that such Party has not 
heretofore assigned or transferred or purported to assign or transfer, to any person, firm, partnership, 
corporation or entity whatsoever, any action or actions, cause of causes of action, at law or in equity, or 
rights, claims, demands, costs, expenses (including, without limitation, attorney’s fees) damages or losses 
in connection with their rights in connection with the Subdivision Agreement or the lots described in Exhibit 
‘C’. 
  

9. Notices. Any delivery of this Agreement, notice, modification of this Agreement, collateral or additional 
agreement, demand, disclosure, request, consent, approval, waiver, declaration or other communication 
that either party desires or is required to give to the other party or any other person shall be in writing. Any 
such communication may be served personally, transmitted by facsimile or by nationally recognized 
overnight delivery service (i.e., Federal Express), or sent by prepaid, first class mail, return receipt requested 
to the party’s address as set forth below: 

97



City Council Staff Report    Page 12 of 20 
Agreement with CROWN, INC. – Tract 5478 
 

 
To CROWN:  
  Joseph Crown 
  CROWN Homes 
  4337 N Golden State Blvd. 

Fresno, CA 93722 
 
To City:  City of Kerman 
  850 S. Madera Avenue 
  Kerman, CA 93630 
 

Any such communication shall be deemed effective upon personal delivery, confirmed receipt of notice 
transmitted by facsimile during regular business hours, two (2) days after transmitting the notice by a 
nationally recognized overnight delivery service, or three (3) days after mailing in accordance with this 
section. Any party may change its address by notice to the other party. Each party shall make an ordinary, 
good faith effort to ensure that it will accept or receive notices that are given in accordance with this section, 
and that any person to be given notice actually receives such notice. 

10. No Inducement. Each Party agrees that if the facts with respect to which this Agreement is executed are 
found hereafter to be different from the facts now believed by any Party, each Party expressly accepts and 
assumes the risk of such possible difference in facts, and agrees that this Agreement shall remain effective, 
notwithstanding such differences. Each Party declares and represents that no promise or inducement of 
other agreement not expressly contained herein has been made to induce this Agreement. 
 

11. Binding Successors. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of each Party hereto, its predecessors, 
successors, subsidiaries, affiliates, representatives, assigns, agents, officers, directors, employees and 
personal representatives, past, present, and future. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing sentence, 
it is agreed that the benefits and burdens of this Agreement shall be binding upon, and benefit the present 
and future owners of each and every lot or parcel described in Exhibit ‘C’ attached hereto.  

 
12. Legal Representation. The Parties represent and acknowledge that each of them has been represented by 

legal counsel, and/or had the opportunity to be represented, with respect to this Agreement and all matters 
covered by or related to this Agreement, and each Party shall bear its own attorney fees for such.  

 
13. Modification. This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the Parties on the subject matter 

hereof and may not be altered, amended or modified in any respect, except in a writing duly executed by 
the Party to be charged. The Parties expressly acknowledge that the Subdivision Agreement for Tract No. 
5478 remains in full force and effect, but that all other prior negotiations, agreements, understandings, oral 
agreements and writings on the subject matter hereof between the Parties to this Agreement are expressly 
superseded hereby and are of no further force and effect. 

 
14. Drafting of Agreement. Each Party represents and warrants that it has cooperated and participated in the 

drafting and preparation of this Agreement. Each Party to this Agreement acknowledges that this Agreement 
and its reduction to final written form is the result of arms-length, good faith negotiations. Accordingly, the 
Parties hereby acknowledge and agree that this Agreement shall not be construed or interpreted in favor or 
against any of the Parties by virtue of the identity of the actual preparer. 

 

98



City Council Staff Report    Page 13 of 20 
Agreement with CROWN, INC. – Tract 5478 
 

 
 

15. Effectuation. The Parties agree to execute any and all documents, including but not limited to disclaimers, 
building permits, certificates of occupancy, and to do all other things as may be reasonably necessary to 
comply with and carry out the terms of this Agreement. 

 
16. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be interpreted and governed by the laws of the State of California. 
 

17. Construction. Headings are used herein for convenience only and shall have no force and effect in the 
interpretation or construction of this Agreement. As used in this Agreement, the singular shall include the 
plural, the masculine, the feminine and neuter genders. 

 
18. Waiver. Should any term, clause or provision of this Agreement be found to be waived, unenforceable or 

invalid, the validity of the remaining terms, clauses and provisions shall not be affected. 

19. Attorney’s Fees. In the event suit is brought to enforce or interpret any Party of this Agreement, the 
prevailing Party shall be entitled to recover as an element of his costs of suit reasonable attorney’s fees. 
The “prevailing party” shall be the Party who is entitled to recover his costs of suit, whether or not the suit 
proceeds to final judgment. 

20. Execution; Enforcement of Unpaid Amounts as Lien. The Parties hereto agree that this Agreement may be 
executed in counterparts with the same force and effect as though all signatures were set forth on a single 
instrument. This Agreement shall be executed in recordable form, and may be recorded by the City. At its 
discretion, City may record a Memorandum of this Agreement in substantially the form set forth as Exhibit 
‘D’ attached hereto. As owner of all of the parcels or lots described in Exhibit ‘C’, Crown agrees that from 
and after December 1, 2020, the unpaid amounts of any deposits or contributions required in connection 
with each parcel or lot may be enforced as a lien to be collected and enforced as a special assessment for 
the amount unpaid as to each parcel in the same manner that unpaid taxes on the property are collected 
and enforced when the assessment has been levied and confirmed by a resolution of the City 
Council. Notwithstanding the foregoing or any other provision of this Agreement, the City shall not have 
any lien rights in connection with this Agreement for any of the Tract 5478 Lots for which a certificate of 
occupancy has been issued.  

 
This Agreement shall be effective on the date last written below. 
 
 
Dated: ______________ Crown Homes  

 By: ____________________________ 
  
Dated: _____________ City of Kerman 

 By: ____________________________ 
 Stephen B. Hill, Mayor 

99



City Council Staff Report    Page 14 of 20 
Agreement with CROWN, INC. – Tract 5478 
 
 
Approved as to Form Only: 

City Attorney for City of Kerman 

_____________________________________ 
Hilda Cantú Montoy  
 
 
 
Exhibits: 
 

A. Schedule of Current Development Impact Fees for Tract 5478 
B. Revised Estimate, Tract 5478, Kerman Estates 
C. Legal Descriptions, Crown Lots  
D. Memorandum of Agreement 

 
 

100



City Council Staff Report    Page 15 of 20 
Agreement with CROWN, INC. – Tract 5478 
 

EXHIBIT ‘A’ 
 

Schedule of Current Development Impact Fees for Tract 5478 
 
 

 
  

101



City Council Staff Report    Page 16 of 20 
Agreement with CROWN, INC. – Tract 5478 
 

Exhibit ‘B’ 
 

Revised Estimate – Tract 5478, Kerman Estates 
 

 

102



City Council Staff Report    Page 17 of 20 
Agreement with CROWN, INC. – Tract 5478 
 

Exhibit ‘C’ 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 

CROWN Lots: 
 
LOTS 32 THROUGH 43 AND 91 THROUGH 98, INCLUSIVE OF TRACT NO. 5478, KERMAN ESTATES 
ACCORDING TO THE MAP THEREOF RECORDED IN VOLUME 78, PAGE(S) 9, 10, AND 11 OF PLATS, 
FRESNO COUNTY RECORDS. 
 
EXCEPT ALL OIL, GAS, AND OTHER HYDROCARBON SUBSTANCES IN AND UNDER SAID PREMISES, 
TOGETHER WITH THE RIGHT AND PRIVILEGE TO DEVELOP AND REMOVE THE SAME, AS RESERVED 
IN THE DEED FROM WM. G. KERCKHOFF COMPANY, A CORPORATION RECORDED DECEMBER 15, 
1945 IN BOOK 2323, PAGE 260, OFFICIAL RECORDS, AS DOCUMENT NO. 59070. 
 
 

 
A.P.N.  023-710-32s through 023-710-43s and 023-710-44s through 023-710-52s 

103



City Council Staff Report    Page 18 of 20 
Agreement with CROWN, INC. – Tract 5478 
 

Exhibit ‘D’ 
 
RECORDED AT THE REQUEST OF, AND 
WHEN RECORDED, RETURN TO: 
 
CITY CLERK 
CITY OF KERMAN 
850 S. MADERA AVENUE 
KERMAN, CA 93630 
 

        NO RECORDING FEE GOV. CODE 27383 
       
     SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR RECORDER'S USE 
 
Affects Assessor’s Parcel Numbers: 
 

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT CONCERNING CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 
IN KERMAN ESTATES TRACT 5478, CITY OF KERMAN 

 
The parcels of real property identified in this Memorandum of Agreement are subject to an Agreement Concerning the 
Construction of homes in Kerman Estates Tract 5478 (“Agreement”), made as of ____________, 2015, between the City of 
Kerman, a California general law city, hereinafter designated and called “City”, and Crown Homes.. 
 
The Agreement also concerns a Subdivision Agreement for Tract No. 5478 entered into on or about August 24, 2006, in 
connection with the City’s approval of a subdivision map for Tract No. 5478 in the City of Kerman. A Memorandum of 
Subdivision Agreement was recorded on November 9, 2006 as Document No. 2006-0238844 in the Official Records of the 
County of Fresno, State of California. 
 
The Lots affected by the Agreement are the real property described in Exhibit ‘A’, attached hereto. 
 
The Agreement and the Subdivision Agreement specify terms, conditions and requirements for the subdivision of lands, 
and the construction of homes on the lands within Tract 5478. The complete Agreement and Subdivision Agreement 
should be reviewed by any person contemplating any transaction in connection with any lands in Tract 5478. The 
Agreement and Subdivision Agreement are available for review in the Office of the City Clerk, 850 South Madera Avenue, 
Kerman, California. 
 

Dated: ______________ Crown Homes. 

 By: ____________________________ 

Dated: _____________ City of Kerman 

 By: ____________________________ 
 
 
 
 
    
 

104



City Council Staff Report    Page 19 of 20 
Agreement with CROWN, INC. – Tract 5478 
 

Exhibit ‘A’ TO MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT 
 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 
 

LOT(S) LOTS 32 THROUGH 43 AND 91 THROUGH 98, INCLUSIVE, OF TRACT NO. 5478, KERMAN 
ESTATES ACCORDING TO THE MAP THEREOF RECORDED IN VOLUME 78, PAGE(S) 9, 10, AND 11 OF 
PLATS, FRESNO COUNTY RECORDS. 
 
EXCEPT ALL OIL, GAS, AND OTHER HYDROCARBON SUBSTANCES IN AND UNDER SAID PREMISES, 
TOGETHER WITH THE RIGHT AND PRIVILEGE TO DEVELOP AND REMOVE THE SAME, AS RESERVED 
IN THE DEED FROM WM. G. KERCKHOFF COMPANY, A CORPORATION RECORDED DECEMBER 15, 
1945 IN BOOK 2323, PAGE 260, OFFICIAL RECORDS, AS DOCUMENT NO. 59070. 
 
 
 
A.P.N.  023-710-32s through 023-710-43s and 023-710-44s through 023-710-52s 
  

105



City Council Staff Report    Page 20 of 20 
Agreement with CROWN, INC. – Tract 5478 
 

 
Attachment ‘D’ 

 
Request from CROWN 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

106


	Agenda
	Presentation from Preston Prince on the 75th Anniversary of the Fresno Housing Authority
	Presentation/Proclamation

	Minutes
	July 15, 2015/July 17, 2015

	Payroll Report
	Payroll Report

	Warrants
	Accounts Payable

	Water Conservation Leak Notification Report
	Report - Leak Notification

	Monthly Investment Report Ending June 30, 2015
	Investment Report

	Third Year Funding of State Law Enforcement Grant
	Staff Report - BSCC

	Resolution Approving First Amendment to Employment Agreement with Police Chief  Blohm
	Staff Report - Police Chief Agreement

	Resolution Authorizing the Purchase of a Prefabricated Restroom for Katey's Kids Park
	Staff Report - Katy's Kis Park

	Resolution Awarding Contract for the California Avenue Reconstruction Project
	Staff Report - California Bid

	Agreement with Crown Homes for the Deferment of Certain Fees Concerning Construction of 20 Homes in Kerman Estates Tract 5478
	Staff Report - Crown Homes




